Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission
1703 Gloucester Street, Brunswick GA 31520
Thursday, October 15, 2020 at 2:00 PM
Commission Meeting Room

COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA
AMENDED
Call to Order

Invocation

Pledge

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
Public Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per speaker. Comments are to be limited to relevant information regarding your position and
should avoid being repetitious. Individuals should sign in stating your name, address and the subject matter on which you wish to speak.
Your cooperation in this process will be greatly appreciated.

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITIONS – C. Harvey / C. Barnhart
Tina Renee Ruppe – Water Operator Class 3

COMMITTEE UPDATES
Facilities Committee – Chairman Turnipseed
Finance Committee – Commissioner Duncan
Human Resources Committee – Commissioner Elliott

APPROVAL
1.
Minutes from September 17, 2020 Regular Meeting (subject to any necessary changes)
2.
FY2019-2020 Financial Audit Presentation/Approval – Trey Scott, Mauldin & Jenkins
3.
Surplus Inventory – A. Burroughs
4.
Contract Award – FY2021 Manhole Rehabilitation List – A. Burroughs
5.
Human Resources SOP / Employee Handbook Revisions – A. Burroughs
• Section 2.4 – Harassment; Workplace Environment
• Section 4.19 - Travel
6.
Leak Adjustments – A. Burroughs
• Westminster Club Apartments
• McDonald’s, St. Simons Island
7.
Coastal Club Apartments Unsolicited Proposal Award – A. Burroughs

DISCUSSION
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S UPDATE
CHAIRMAN’S UPDATE
EXECUTIVE SESSION
MEETING ADJOURNED
All citizens are invited to attend.
There is a possibility of a quorum of City or County Commissioners being present.

Brunswick-Glynn County
Joint Water and Sewer Commission

Memorandum
To:

BGJWSC Board of Commissioners

From:

LaDonnah Roberts, Deputy Executive Director

Date:

October 15, 2020

Re:

Acceptance of the June 30, 2020 Audit Report

Background
The JWSC is required to have its financial statements audited annually by an outside certified public accounting firm.
The Operational Agreement requires that the audit be completed by October 15 of each year.

Staff Report
Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, issued their unqualified opinion for the Fiscal Year ended June 30,
2020 and produced their audit report.
Mr. Trey Scott, CPA, a partner in Mauldin & Jenkins, presented the audit results to the Finance Committee at the
October 14, 2020 meeting.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends that the Commission accept the audited financial report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2020 and
authorize its release to the public and reporting agencies.

Recommended Motion
“I make a motion that the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission accept the audited
financial report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2020 and authorize its release to the public and reporting
agencies.”

Enclosures
June 30, 2020 Audit Report

Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint
Water & Sewer Commission
Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis (AD&A)
Financial & Compliance Audit Summary
June 30, 2020

Presented by:
Trey Scott, CPA

1‐800‐277‐0050

Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2020

PURPOSE OF AUDITOR’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
 Engagement Team and Firm Information.
 Overview of:
o Audit Opinion;
o Financial Statements, Footnotes and Supplementary Information;
o Compliance Reports;
o Audit Scopes and Procedures.
 Required Communications under Government Auditing Standards.

 Other Communications to the Commission.
 Other Items and Closing Thoughts.
 Answer Questions.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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MAULDIN & JENKINS – GOVERNMENTAL PRACTICE
General Information:


Founded in 1918. Approx. 300 personnel.
Large regional Southeastern firm.



Offices in Columbia, Macon, Atlanta, Albany,
Savannah, Bradenton, Chattanooga and Birmingham.

Governmental Sector:


Serve more governmental entities in the Southeast
than any other firm with over 100,000 hours annually.



Largest industry niche served by Firm (28% of Firm).



Over 100 people with current governmental experience.



In past three (3) years, we have served approx. 500 governments:
 57 counties;
 126 cities;
 62 school systems and 40 charter schools;
 48 state entities;
 50 stand‐alone business‐type special purpose entities (water/sewer, transit, gas,
electric, and airports, etc.);
 130 stand‐alone governmental special purpose entities (housing, development,
industrial, other educational, health & welfare, retirement, libraries, etc.);
 131 governments awarded the GFOA's and/or ASBO’s Financial
Reporting Certificates.



Experience performing forensic audit services and information technology consultations.



Experience performing municipal bond debt issuance attestation services serving
approx. 50 clients with over $11 billion in aggregate publicly issued debt instruments.



Considered to be in the Top 20 total number of Single Audits conducted in U.S.A.

Experience auditing a part of the State of Georgia including as much as approx. 30% of the
State’s General Fund, and a substantial number of the State’s component units.

Engagement Team Leaders for the Commission Include:


Trey Scott – Engagement Lead Partner – 12 years’ experience,



David Irwin – Quality Assurance Partner – 17 years’ experience



Samantha Richardson – Engagement Manager – 17 years’ experience

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Page 2

Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2020

MAULDIN & JENKINS – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Other Industries & Services by Mauldin & Jenkins:
Each of Mauldin & Jenkins’ offices provides a wide variety of services to a broad range of clientele.
We have partners and managers who are responsible for specialized practice areas of auditing
and accounting, taxes and management advisory services. Their purpose, as leaders in the
particular practice area, is to establish policies with respect to technical matters in these specific
areas and ensure that the quality of the Firm's practice is maintained.
Industries Served: Over the years, our partners have developed expertise in certain industries
representative of a cross section of the Georgia economy, including:









Governmental Entities (state entities,
cities, counties, school systems,
business‐type operations, libraries, and
other special purpose entities)
SEC Registrants
Wholesale Distribution
Agri‐Businesses
Manufacturing
Professional Services
Employee Benefit Plans










Financial Institutions (community banks,
savings and loans, thrifts, credit unions,
mortgage companies, and finance
companies)
Non‐Profit Organizations
Retail Businesses
Long‐term Healthcare
Construction and Development
Individuals, Estates and Trusts
Real Estate Management

Services Provided: This diversity of practice enables our personnel to experience a wide variety
of business, accounting and tax situations. We provide the traditional and not‐so‐traditional
services such as:













Financial Audit/Review/Compilation
Compliance Audits and Single Audits
Agreed‐Upon Procedures
Forensic Audits
Bond Issuance Services
Performance Audits
State Sales Tax Matters
International Tax Matters
Business and Strategic Planning
Profitability Consulting
Budgeting
Buy‐Sell Agreements and Business
Valuation Issues

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC














Income Tax Planning and Preparation
Multi‐State Income Tax Issues
Information Systems Consulting
Cost Accounting Analysis
Healthcare Cost Reimbursement
Outsourced Billing Services
Fixed Asset Inventories
Succession and Exit Strategy Consulting
Estate Planning
Management Information Systems
Employee Benefit Plan Administration
Merger/Acquisition and Expansion
Financing
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The independent auditor’s report has specific significance to readers of the financial report.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements are the responsibility of management.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility, as external auditors, is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. We planned and performed our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Opinion
We have issued an unmodified audit report (i.e., “clean opinion”). The respective financial
statements are considered to present fairly the financial position and results of operations as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2020.
Other Matters
Certain required supplementary information and other information is included in the financial
report and, as directed by relevant auditing standards, we have not expressed an opinion or
provided any assurance on the respective information.
Other Reporting
Government Auditing Standards require auditors to issue a report on our consideration of
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. We have issued such a
report and reference to this report is included in the independent auditor’s report.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position
Assets:
Total assets and deferred outflows increased from approximately $183,335,000 to $193,139,000.
The majority of this increase is the result of an increase in cash and investments in the current
year. The deferred outflows represent the Commission’s deferred charges on the revenue bond
refunding and deferred outflows related to pension.
Liabilities:
Total liabilities and deferred inflows decreased from approximately $44,117,000 to $41,354,000.
The majority of this decrease is a result of the decrease in outstanding revenue bonds payable
from continued debt service payments on the Commission’s outstanding debt.
Net Position:
The Commission’s net position (or equity) increased from approximately $139,218,000 to
$151,785,000. This increase is reconciled on the Commission’s “Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position”. It should be noted that $98,730,000 of the Commission’s
net position represents the Commission’s net investment in capital assets.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Total operating revenues of the Commission decreased slightly from approximately $35,468,000
to $34,640,000. This represents a decrease of 2.3%.
Total operating expenses of the Commission decreased from approximately $29,034,000 to
$27,034,000. This represents a decrease of 6.8%. Included in the operating expenses was
depreciation expense in the amount of approximately $6,157,000. This represents a non‐cash
current year operating expense.
The difference between operating revenues and expenses resulted in operating income of
approximately $7,606,000.
Total non‐operating revenues and expenses netted to revenue of approximately $4,128,000 at
year‐end. The majority of this revenue relates to the Commission’s intergovernmental revenues
from SPLOST and payments from the County of $4,596,000 and expense of $1,225,000 for
interest expense and fiscal fees. The Commission also had interest income of approximately
$1,183,000, and capital contributions of approximately $832,000.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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The change in net position (i.e., net loss) amounted to an increase of approximately $12,567,000.
Statement of Cash Flows
The statement of cash flows is a very important statement for any enterprise, and the
Commission is no different. The “cash flows from operating activities” are the most important
element in the statement of cash flows, because it should be the operations of an entity that
provides a substantial portion of the capital needed in a growth environment. This section of the
statement begins with operating income (not net income as you see in the commercial sector) as
reported in the statement of operations.
The Commission has positive cash flows from operations. Operating cash flows amounted to
approximately $14.8 million for the year ended June 30, 2020. As noted previously, depreciation
expense was recorded in the approximate amount of $6.2 million and represents a non‐cash flow
item. Net operating cash flows are positive.
The cash flows generated from capital and related financing activities were used primarily for the
purchase of capital assets of approximately $5.6 million. In addition, the Commission had
principal payments on long‐term borrowings of approximately $2.95 million, and interest paid on
long‐term borrowings of approximately $1.2 million and is noted in the section “cash flows from
capital and related financing activities.” The Commission recognized intergovernmental receipts
in the approximate amount of $5.1 million which are the SPLOST receipts and payments from the
County.
In conclusion, the Commission reflects an increase in cash and cash equivalents of approximately
$984,000.
Footnotes
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: This footnote discusses the overall
organization of the Commission and the nature of its operations. This note also discloses
pertinent information regarding the governing body of the Commission.
This footnote continues by sharing with a reader of the financial statements the significant
accounting policies and principles utilized in the preparation of the financial statements.
Note 2 – Deposits and Investments: This disclosure addresses common deposit and investment
risks related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and interest rate risk.
Note 3 – Receivables: This footnote discloses the Commission’s accounts receivable activity.
Note 4 – Capital Assets: This footnote discloses the Commission’s capital asset activity and its
related accumulated depreciation for the year.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Note 5 – Long‐Term Obligations: This footnote discloses the Commission’s long‐term debt
activity for the year.
Note 6 – Net Investment in Capital Assets and Restricted Net Position: This footnote discloses
the balances that make up the Commission’s net investment in capital assets.
Note 7 – Defined Benefit Pension Plan: This footnote discloses information regarding the
Commission’s pension plan, including funding policies and the amount of required contributions
as compared to actual contributions.
Note 8 – Risk Management: This footnote discloses the Commission’s various risks of loss.
Note 9 – Commitments and Contingencies: This footnote discloses the contingencies from
potential litigation, claims, and assessments filed against the Commission.

COMPLIANCE REPORT
The financial report package contains a report on our tests of the Commission’s internal controls
and compliance with laws, regulations, etc. The report is not intended to provide an opinion, but
to provide a form of negative assurance as to the Commission’s internal controls and compliance
with applicable rules and regulations.
This report and the procedures performed are required by Government Auditing Standards.

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COMMISSION
The Auditor’s Responsibility Under Government Auditing Standards
and Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America
Our audit of the financial statements of the Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer
Commission (the “Commission”) for the year ended June 30, 2020 was conducted in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error, fraudulent
financial reporting or misappropriation of assets. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Accordingly, the
audit was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about the financial
statements. We believe our audit accomplishes that objective.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also performed tests of controls
and compliance with laws and regulations that contribute to the evidence supporting our opinion
on the financial statements. However, they do not provide a basis for opining on the
Commission’s internal control or compliance with laws and regulations.
Accounting Policies
Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used by the Commission. There are several new accounting standards which will be required to
be implemented in the coming years. These are discussed later in this document.
In considering the qualitative aspects of the Commission’s accounting policies, we did not identify
any significant or unusual transactions or significant accounting policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. The
Commission’s policies relative to the timing of recording of transactions are consistent with GAAP
and typical government organizations.
Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are
based upon management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses
their knowledge and experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about
future events. Management has informed us they used all the relevant facts available to them
at the time to make the best judgments about accounting estimates and we considered this
information in the scope of our audit. We considered this information and the qualitative aspects
of management’s calculations in evaluating the Commission’s significant accounting policies.
Estimates significant to the financial statements include such items as: the estimated lives of
depreciable assets; actuarial assumptions and concepts relative to the benefit plans; valuation of
financial and non‐financial instruments; and the estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts.
Financial Statement Disclosures
The footnote disclosures to the financial statements are also an integral part of the financial
statements. The process used by management to accumulate the information included in the
disclosures was the same process used in accumulating the financial statements, and the
accounting policies described above are included in those disclosures. The overall neutrality,
consistency, and clarity of the disclosures was considered as part of our audit and in forming our
opinion on the financial statements.
Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the
audit.
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Disagreements with Management
We encountered no disagreements with management over the application of significant
accounting principles, the basis for management’s judgments on significant matters, the scope
of the audit or significant disclosures to be included in the financial statements.
Representation from Management
We requested written representations from management relating to the accuracy of information
included in the financial statements and the completeness and accuracy of various information
requested by us, during the audit. Management provided those written representations.
Significant Issues Discussed with Management
There were no significant issues discussed with management related to business conditions,
plans, or strategies that may have affected the risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements. We are not aware of any consultations management had with us or other
accountants about accounting or auditing matters. No major issues were discussed with
management prior to our retention to perform the aforementioned audit.
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants
We are not aware of any consultations management had with other accountants about
accounting or auditing matters.
Audit Adjustments and Uncorrected Misstatements
There were no auditor proposed audit adjustments during our audit of the Commission’s financial
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020. No uncorrected misstatements or passed
adjustments were noted.
Independence
We are independent of the Commission and all related organizations, in accordance with auditing
standards promulgated by the American Institute of Public Accountants and Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Page 9

Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2020
Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements
We are not aware of any other documents that contain the audited basic financial statements.
If such documents were to be published, we would have a responsibility to determine that such
financial information was not materially inconsistent with the audited statements of the
Commission.

ACCOUNTING RECOMMENDATIONS AND RELATED MATTERS
Recommendations for Improvement and Other Matters
During our audit of the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, we had
no findings or management points. Additionally, the Commission addressed the management
point from the prior year audit by adopting written financial policies and procedures.
Other Matters for Communication to the Board and Management
During our audit of the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, we noted
other matters which we wish to communicate to you in an effort to keep the Commission abreast
of accounting matters that could present challenges in financial reporting in future periods.
1) New Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Pronouncements
As has been the case for the past 10 years, GASB has issued several other new pronouncements
which will be effective in future years. The following is a brief summary of the new standards:
a) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities was issued in January 2017 and is effective for the
first reporting period beginning after December 15, 2018. However, in light of the COVID‐
19 Pandemic, in May 2020 the GASB issued Statement No. 95 (Postponement of the
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance) which changed the effective date of
Statement No. 84 to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
This statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities with a focus on: 1)
whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity; and 2) the
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists.
Further, this statement describes four (4) fiduciary funds that should be reported, if
applicable: 1) pension and other employee benefit trust funds; 2) investment trust funds;
3) private‐purpose trust funds; and 4) custodial funds. Custodial funds generally should
report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that
meets specific criteria.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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b) Statement No. 87, Leases was issued in June 2017 and is effective for the first reporting
period beginning after December 15, 2019. However, in light of the COVID‐19 Pandemic,
in May 2020 the GASB issued Statement No. 95 (Postponement of the Effective Dates of
Certain Authoritative Guidance) which changed the effective date of Statement No. 87 to
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021.
This statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model
for lease accounting based on the principle that a lease is the financing of the right to use
an underlying asset.
Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible
right‐to‐use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of
information about governments’ leasing activities.
Definition of a Lease: A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to
use another entity’s non‐financial asset (the underlying asset) as specified in the contract
for a period of time in an exchange or exchange‐like transaction. Examples of non‐
financial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, and equipment. Any contract that meets
this definition should be accounted for under the lease’s guidance, unless specifically
excluded in this statement.
Lease Term: The lease term is defined as the period during which a lessee has a non‐
cancelable right to use an underlying asset, plus the following periods, if applicable:


Periods covered by a lessee’s option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain,
based on all relevant factors, that the lessee will exercise that option;



Periods covered by a lessee’s option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably
certain, based on all relevant factors, that the lessee will not exercise that option;



Periods covered by a lessor’s option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain,
based on all relevant factors, that the lessor will exercise that option;



Periods covered by a lessor’s option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably
certain, based on all relevant factors, that the lessor will not exercise that option.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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A fiscal funding or cancellation clause should affect the lease term only when it is
reasonably certain that the clause will be exercised. Lessees and lessors should reassess
the lease term only if one or more of the following occur:


The lessee or lessor elects to exercise an option even though it was previously
determined that it was reasonably certain that the lessee or lessor would not
exercise that option;



The lessee or lessor elects not to exercise an option even though it was previously
determined that it was reasonably certain that the lessee or lessor would exercise
that option;



An event specified in the lease contract that requires an extension or termination
of the lease takes place.

Short‐Term Leases: A short‐term lease is defined as a lease that, at the commencement
of the lease term, has a maximum possible term under the lease contract of 12 months
(or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of being
exercised. Lessees and lessors should recognize short‐term lease payments as outflows
of resources or inflows of resources, respectively, based on the payment provisions of the
lease contract.
Lessee Accounting: A lessee should recognize a lease liability and a lease asset at the
commencement of the lease term, unless the lease is a short‐term lease or it transfers
ownership of the underlying asset. The lease liability should be measured at the present
value of payments expected to be made during the lease term (less any lease incentives).
The lease asset should be measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the
lease term and certain direct costs.
A lessee should reduce the lease liability as payments are made and recognize an outflow
of resources (for example, expense) for interest on the liability. The lessee should
amortize the lease asset in a systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease
term or the useful life of the underlying asset. The notes to financial statements should
include a description of leasing arrangements, the amount of lease assets recognized, and
a schedule of future lease payments to be made.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Lessor Accounting: A lessor should recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of
resources at the commencement of the lease term, with certain exceptions for leases of
assets held as investments, certain regulated leases, short‐term leases, and leases that
transfer ownership of the underlying asset. A lessor should not derecognize the asset
underlying the lease. The lease receivable should be measured at the present value of
lease payments expected to be received during the lease term. The deferred inflow of
resources should be measured at the value of the lease receivable plus any payments
received at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods.
A lessor should recognize interest revenue on the lease receivable and an inflow of
resources (for example, revenue) from the deferred inflows of resources in a systematic
and rational manner over the term of the lease. The notes to financial statements should
include a description of leasing arrangements and the total amount of inflows of
resources recognized from leases.
Contracts with Multiple Components and Contract Combinations: Generally, a
government should account for the lease and non‐lease components of a lease as
separate contracts. If a lease involves multiple underlying assets, lessees and lessors in
certain cases should account for each underlying asset as a separate lease contract. To
allocate the contract price to different components, lessees and lessors should use
contract prices for individual components as long as they do not appear to be
unreasonable based on professional judgment, or use professional judgment to
determine their best estimate if there are no stated prices or if stated prices appear to be
unreasonable. If determining a best estimate is not practicable, multiple components in
a lease contract should be accounted for as a single lease unit. Contracts that are entered
into at or near the same time with the same counterparty and that meet certain criteria
should be considered part of the same lease contract and should be evaluated in
accordance with the guidance for contracts with multiple components.
Lease Modifications and Terminations: An amendment to a lease contract should be
considered a lease modification, unless the lessee’s right to use the underlying asset
decreases, in which case it would be a partial or full lease termination. A lease termination
should be accounted for by reducing the carrying values of the lease liability and lease
asset by a lessee, or the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources by the lessor,
with any difference being recognized as a gain or loss. A lease modification that does not
qualify as a separate lease should be accounted for by re‐measuring the lease liability and
adjusting the related lease asset by a lessee and re‐measuring the lease receivable and
adjusting the related deferred inflows of resources by a lessor.
Subleases and Leaseback Transactions: Subleases should be treated as transactions
separate from the original lease. The original lessee that becomes the lessor in a sublease
should account for the original lease and the sublease as separate transactions, as a lessee
and lessor, respectively.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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A transaction qualifies for sale‐leaseback accounting only if it includes a sale. Otherwise,
it is a borrowing. The sale and lease portions of a transaction should be accounted for as
separate sale and lease transactions, except that any difference between the carrying
value of the capital asset that was sold and the net proceeds from the sale should be
reported as a deferred inflow of resources or a deferred outflow of resources and
recognized over the term of the lease.
A lease‐leaseback transaction should be accounted for as a net transaction. The gross
amounts of each portion of the transaction should be disclosed.
c) Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and
Direct Placements was issued in March 2018 and is effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2018 (meaning June 30, 2019). However, in light of the COVID‐
19 Pandemic, in May 2020 the GASB issued Statement No. 95 (Postponement of the
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance) which changed the effective date of
Statement No. 88 to reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2019.
This standard defines debt for disclosure purposes and adds disclosures related to debt
(it does not reduce any previously required disclosures).
Under Statement 88, debt for disclosure purposes is defined as a liability that arises from
a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets) in one or more payments to settle
an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established. This would
include, but is not limited to:
-

Direct Borrowings: Entering into a loan agreement with a lender.
Direct Placements: Issuing a debt security directly to an investor.

This excludes leases (except for contracts reported as a financed purchase) and accounts
payable.
In addition to other disclosures related to debt, the notes to the financial statements
should include:
-

-

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

The amount of any unused lines of credit.
Assets pledged as collateral for debt.
Terms specified in the debt agreement related to significant:
 Events of default with finance‐related consequences
 Termination events with finance‐related consequences
 Subjective acceleration clauses
Debt disclosures should separate information regarding direct borrowings
and direct placements from other debt.
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d) Statement 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction
Period was issued in June 2018 and is effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019 (meaning June 30, 2021). However, in light of the COVID‐19
Pandemic, in May 2020 the GASB issued Statement No. 95 (Postponement of the Effective
Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance) which changed the effective date of Statement
No. 89 to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020.
This standard eliminates the requirement/ability to capitalize construction period interest
costs as part of the cost of a capital asset in enterprise funds. This standard should be
applied prospectively with no restatement. This standard can be early implemented as
part of fiscal year 2019.
e) Statement 90, Majority Equity Interests – An Amendment of GASB’s No. 14 and 61 was
issued in August 2018, and is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2018 (meaning June 30, 2020). However, in light of the COVID‐19 Pandemic, in May 2020
the GASB issued Statement No. 95 (Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance) which changed the effective date of Statement No. 90 to
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
Under this standard, an equity interest is: a) a financial interest in a legally separate
organization by the ownership shares of the organization’s stock; or b) by otherwise
having an explicit, measurable right to the net resources of the organization that is usually
based on an investment of financial or capital resources by a government. An equity
interest is explicit and measurable if: a) the government has a present or future claim to
the net resources of the entity, and b) the method for measuring the government’s share
of the entity’s net resources is determinable.
If the interest is deemed to be an investment under GASB No. 72, paragraph 64, then the
interest should be reported as an investment and measured using the equity method. If
the interest is held by a special‐purpose government engaged in fiduciary activities, a
fiduciary fund, or an endowment or permanent fund, then the amount should be
measured at fair value. If interest is 100% of entity, then it is a component unit. We do
not expect this new standard to have a significant effect on the Commission.
f) Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations was issued in May 2019 and is effective for
the first reporting period beginning after December 15, 2020, meaning for those with year
ends of December 31, 2021 and beyond. However, in light of the COVID‐19 Pandemic, in
May 2020 the GASB issued Statement No. 95 (Postponement of the Effective Dates of
Certain Authoritative Guidance) which changed the effective date of Statement No. 91 to
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.
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The primary objectives of this statement are to provide a single method of reporting
conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with: 1)
commitments extended by issuers, 2) arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations, and 3) related note disclosures. This statement achieves those objectives by
clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit
debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and
financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by
issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving
required note disclosures.
A conduit debt obligation is defined as a debt instrument meeting all of the following
characteristics:


There are at least three parties involved: 1) an issuer, 2) a third‐party obligor, and
3) a debt holder (or a debt trustee);



The issuer and the third‐party obligor are not within the same financial reporting
entity;



The debt obligation is not a parity bond of the issuer, nor is it cross‐collateralized
with other debt of the issuer;



The third‐party obligor (or its agent), not the issuer, ultimately receives the
proceeds from the debt issuance;



The third‐party obligor, not the issuer, is primarily obligated for the payment of all
amounts associated with the debt obligation (debt service payments).

All conduit debt obligations involve the issuer making a limited commitment. Some
issuers extend additional commitments or voluntary commitments to support debt
service in the event the third party is, or will be, unable to do so.
An issuer should not recognize a conduit debt obligation as a liability. However, an issuer
should recognize a liability associated with an additional commitment or a voluntary
commitment to support debt service if certain recognition criteria are met. As long as a
conduit debt obligation is outstanding, an issuer that has made an additional commitment
should evaluate at least annually whether those criteria are met. An issuer that has made
only a limited commitment should evaluate whether those criteria are met when an event
occurs that causes the issuer to reevaluate its willingness or ability to support the obligor’s
debt service through a voluntary commitment.
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This statement also addresses arrangements — often characterized as leases — that are
associated with conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are
constructed or acquired with the proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third‐
party obligors in the course of their activities. Payments from third‐party obligors are
intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments. During those arrangements,
issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass to the
obligors at the end of the arrangements.
Issuers should not report those arrangements as leases, nor should they recognize a
liability for the related conduit debt obligations or a receivable for the payments related
to those arrangements. In addition, the following provisions apply:


If the title passes to the third‐party obligor at the end of the arrangement, an
issuer should not recognize a capital asset.



If the title does not pass to the third‐party obligor and the third party has exclusive
use of the entire capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer should not
recognize a capital asset until the arrangement ends.



If the title does not pass to the third‐party obligor and the third party has exclusive
use of only portions of the capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer should
recognize the entire capital asset and a deferred inflow of resources at the
inception of the arrangement. The deferred inflow of resources should be
reduced, and an inflow recognized, in a systematic and rational manner over the
term of the arrangement.

This statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt
obligations, organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the issuers’ conduit debt obligations and a description of each type
of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities related to supporting the debt service of
conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about the amount recognized
and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.
g) Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 was issued in January 2020 and because it is an
omnibus standard, contains several different effective dates as follows (as amended by
Statement No. 95 issued in May 2020):


For fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 relative to the requirements related
to intra‐entity transfers of assets and those related to the applicability of
Statements 73 and 74.



For reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021 relative to the requirements
related to application of Statement 84 to post‐employment benefit arrangements
and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities.
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For government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2021. The requirements related to the measurement of liabilities (and
assets, if any) associated with AROs in a government acquisition.



Other items addressed by this omnibus statement (requirements related to
Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019‐3, reinsurance recoveries, and
terminology used to refer to derivative instruments) were effective upon issuance.

The objectives of this statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial
reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of
certain GASB Statements. This statement addresses a variety of topics and includes
specific provisions about the following:


The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No.
2019‐3, Leases, for interim financial reports.



Reporting of intra‐entity transfers of assets between a primary government
employer and a component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit
other post‐employment benefit (OPEB) plan.



The applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68,
and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as
amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for Post‐employment Benefit Plans
Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets accumulated for post‐
employment benefits.



The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities,
to post‐employment benefit arrangements.



Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement
obligations (AROs) in a government acquisition.



Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from
reinsurers or excess insurers.



Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in
authoritative literature.



Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments.
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h) Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates was issued in March 2020
and contains two (2) different effective dates. The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate
benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods ending after December 31,
2021. All other requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2020.
As a result of global reference rate reform, the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of 2021, prompting
governments to amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing
LIBOR with other reference rates, by either changing the reference rate or adding or
changing fallback provisions related to the reference rate.
The objective of this statement is to address those and other accounting and financial
reporting implications that result from the replacement of an IBOR. This statement
achieves that objective by:


Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge
accounting termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate
of the hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment



Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is
amended to replace the reference rate



Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does
not, by itself, affect the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged
expected transaction is probable



Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative
evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap



Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds
Rate as appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the
effectiveness of an interest rate swap



Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as
amended.

i) Statement No. 94, Public‐Private and Public‐Public Partnerships and Availability
Payment Arrangements was issued in March 2020 and is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2022 which means year ends of June 30, 2023 and following.
This statement was issued by the GASB to address a gap in generally accepted accounting
principles: how do we account for these type arrangements that do not meet the
definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA) covered by GASB Statement No. 60?
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Statement No. 94 requires that Public‐Private Partnerships and Public‐Public Partnerships
(“PPPs”) that meet the definition of a lease apply the guidance in Statement No. 87,
Leases if: a) existing assets of the transferor are the only underlying PPP assets, b)
improvements are not required to be made by the operator to those existing assets as
part of the PPP arrangement, and c) the PPP does not meet the definition of an SCA. All
other PPPs that will not apply the guidance in Statement No. 87 will generally use the
accounting guidance contained in Statement No. 60 which was superseded by this new
standard.
Statement No. 94 also establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for
availability payment arrangements (APAs). As defined in this statement, an APA is an
arrangement in which a government compensates an operator for services that may
include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying non‐
financial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange‐like transaction. An APA
that is related to designing, constructing, and financing a non‐financial asset in which
ownership of the asset transfers by the end of the contract should be accounted for by
the government as a financed purchase of the underlying asset.
j) Statement No. 96, Subscription‐Based Information Technology Arrangements was
issued in May 2020 and is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022 which
means year ends of June 30, 2023 and following.
This statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription‐based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end
users (governments). This statement: 1) defines an SBITA; 2) establishes that an SBITA
results in a right‐to‐use subscription asset — an intangible asset — and a corresponding
subscription liability; 3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of an SBITA; and 4) requires note
disclosures regarding an SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based
on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.
An SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another party's
(an SBITA vendor's) information technology (IT) software, alone or in combination with
tangible capital assets (the underlying IT assets), as specified in the contract for a period
of time in an exchange or exchange‐like transaction.
The subscription term includes the period during which a government has a non‐
cancellable right to use the underlying IT assets. The subscription term also includes
periods covered by an option to extend (if it is reasonably certain that the government or
SBITA vendor will exercise that option) or to terminate (if it is reasonably certain that the
government or SBITA vendor will not exercise that option).
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Under this statement, a government generally should recognize a right‐to‐use
subscription asset — an intangible asset — and a corresponding subscription liability. A
government should recognize the subscription liability at the commencement of the
subscription term, which is when the subscription asset is placed into service. The
subscription liability should be initially measured at the present value of subscription
payments expected to be made during the subscription term. Future subscription
payments should be discounted using the interest rate the SBITA vendor charges the
government, which may be implicit, or the government's incremental borrowing rate if
the interest rate is not readily determinable. A government should recognize amortization
of the discount on the subscription liability as an outflow of resources (for example,
interest expense) in subsequent financial reporting periods.
The subscription asset should be initially measured as the sum of: 1) the initial
subscription liability amount, 2) payments made to the SBITA vendor before
commencement of the subscription term, and 3) capitalizable implementation costs, less
any incentives received from the SBITA vendor at or before the commencement of the
subscription term. A government should recognize amortization of the subscription asset
as an outflow of resources over the subscription term.
Activities associated with an SBITA, other than making subscription payments, should be
grouped into the following three stages, and their costs should be accounted for
accordingly:


Preliminary Project Stage, including activities such as evaluating alternatives,
determining needed technology, and selecting an SBITA vendor. Outlays in this
stage should be expensed as incurred.



Initial Implementation Stage, including all ancillary charges necessary to place the
subscription asset into service. Outlays in this stage generally should be capitalized
as an addition to the subscription asset.



Operation and Additional Implementation Stage, including activities such as
subsequent implementation activities, maintenance, and other activities for a
government's ongoing operations related to an SBITA. Outlays in this stage should
be expensed as incurred unless they meet specific capitalization criteria.

In classifying certain outlays into the appropriate stage, the nature of the activity should
be the determining factor. Training costs should be expensed as incurred, regardless of
the stage in which they are incurred.
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k) Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans was
issued in June 2020 and is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 (year
ends of June 30, 2022 and following).
The primary objectives of this statement are to: 1) increase consistency and
comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in
which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; 2)
mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution other post‐employment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee
benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as
fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and 3) enhance the
relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting
for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457
plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those
plans.
This statement requires that for purposes of determining whether a primary government
is financially accountable for a potential component unit, except for a potential
component unit that is a defined contribution pension plan, a defined contribution OPEB
plan, or an other employee benefit plan (for example, certain Section 457 plans), the
absence of a governing board should be treated the same as the appointment of a voting
majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties that a
governing board typically would perform. This statement also requires that the financial
burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, be applicable to
only defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered
through trusts.
This statement: 1) requires that a Section 457 plan be classified as either a pension plan
or an other employee benefit plan depending on whether the plan meets the definition
of a pension plan, and 2) clarifies that Statement 84, as amended, should be applied to all
arrangements organized under IRC Section 457 to determine whether those
arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities.
l) Other Pending or Current GASB Projects. As noted by the numerous pronouncements
issued by GASB over the past decade, the GASB continues to research various projects of
interest to governmental units. Subjects of note include:
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Re‐Examination of the Financial Reporting Model. GASB has added this project
to its technical agenda to make improvements to the existing financial reporting
model (established via GASB 34). Improvements are meant to enhance the
effectiveness of the model in providing information for decision‐making and
assessing a government’s accountability. GASB anticipates a final standard
expected in early 2022.



Conceptual Framework is a constant matter being looked at by GASB. Current
measurement focus statements (for governmental funds) to change to near‐term
financial resources measurement. May dictate a period (such as 60 days) for
revenue and expenditure recognition. May expense things such as supplies and
prepaid assets at acquisition. Will look into which balances (at all statement
levels) are measured at acquisition and which need to be re‐measured at year‐
end. Final standard is expected in 2022.



Revenue and Expense Recognition is another long‐term project where the GASB
is working to develop a comprehensive application model for recognition of
revenues and expenses from non‐exchange, exchange, and exchange‐like
transactions. The final standard is expected in 2023.



Compensated Absences is a technical topic being examined by the GASB currently
due to significant changes in benefits offered by governmental employers.
Current GAAP does not address certain items such as paid time off (PTO) and there
is a wide divergence in practice. A final standard on this topic is expected towards
the end of 2021.



Prior‐Period Adjustments, Accounting Changes, and Error Corrections is a
technical topic being examined by the GASB due to a wide diversity in practice
regarding required presentation on the face of the financial statements,
disclosures, etc. A final standard on this topic is expected in early 2022.
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FREE QUARTERLY CONTINUING EDUCATION
AND NEWSLETTERS FOR GOVERNMENTAL CLIENTS
Free Continuing Education. We provide free continuing education (quarterly is the goal and
objective) for all of our governmental clients. Each quarter we pick a couple of significant topics
tailored to be of interest to governmental entities. In an effort to accommodate our entire
governmental client base, we offer the sessions several times per quarter at a variety of client
provided locations resulting in greater networking among our governmental clients. We normally
see approximately 100 people per quarter. We obtain the input and services of experienced
outside speakers along with providing the instruction utilizing our in‐house professionals. We
hope Commission staff and officials have been able to participate in this opportunity, and that it
has been beneficial to you.
“I’ve been a CPA for 32 years. Today’s CPE class by Mauldin &
Jenkins has been the best of my career”. Terry Nall, CPA, City of
Dunwoody (GA) Council Member
“They are always on top of new accounting pronouncements and
provide training well before implementation deadlines. This is a
very valuable resource for our organization”. Laurie Puckett, CPA,
CPFO, Gwinnett County (GA), Accounting Director
Examples of subjects addressed in past quarters include:



















Accounting for Debt Issuances
American Recovery & Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Updates
Best Budgeting Practices, Policies and Processes
Budget Preparation
CAFR Preparation (several times including a two (2) day hands‐on course)
Capital Asset Accounting Processes and Controls
Closing Out and Audit Preparation
Collateralization of Deposits and Investments
Evaluating Financial and Non‐Financial Health of a Local Government
GASB No. 51, Intangible Assets
GASB No. 54, Governmental Fund Balance (subject addressed twice)
GASB No. 60, Service Concession Arrangements (webcast)
GASB No. 61, the Financial Reporting Entity (webcast)
GASB No.’s 63 & 65, Deferred Inflows and Outflows (webcast)
GASB No.’s 67 & 68, New Pension Standards (presented several occasions)
GASB No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application
GASB No. 74 & 75, New OPEB Standards
GASB No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Page 24

Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2020















GASB No. 87, Leases
GASB Updates (ongoing and several sessions)
Grant Accounting Processes and Controls
Information Technology (IT) Risk Management
Internal Controls Over Accounts Payable, Payroll and Cash Disbursements
Internal Controls Over Receivables & the Revenue Cycle
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Compliance Issues, Primarily Payroll Matters
Legal Considerations for Debt Issuances & Disclosure Requirements
Policies and Procedures Manuals
Presenting Financial Information to Non‐Financial People
Segregation of Duties
Single Audits for Auditees
SPLOST Accounting, Reporting & Compliance
Uniform Grant Reporting Requirements and the New Single Audit
Governmental Newsletters. We periodically produce newsletters
tailored to meet the needs of governments. The newsletters have
addressed a variety of subjects and are intended to be timely in
their subject matter. The newsletters are authored by Mauldin &
Jenkins partners and managers, and are not purchased from an
outside agency. The newsletters are intended to keep you
informed of current developments in the government finance

environment.
In the past several years, the following topics have been addressed in our monthly newsletters:
















American Recovery & Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Information and Issues
Are Your Government’s Funds Secure?
Capitalization of Interest
Changes in FDIC Deposit Insurance Coverage
Changes on the Horizon for OMB Circular A‐133
Cybersecurity Awareness
Deposit Collateralization
Employee vs Independent Contractor
Escheat Laws on Unclaimed Property
Federal Funding and Accountability Transparency Act
Forensic Audit or Financial Audit?
Form PT 440
GASB Invitation to Comment – the New Financial Reporting Model
GASB No. 54, Governmental Fund Balance
GASB No. 54, Governmental Fund Balance Note Disclosure Requirements
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GASB No. 60, Service Concession Arrangements
GASB No. 67, New Pension Standard
GASB No.’s 63 & 65, Deferred Inflows & Outflows
GASB No. 68 Allocations
GASB No. 72, Fair Value, It is Not Totally About Disclosure
GASB No.’s 74 & 75, Other Post‐Employment Benefits (OPEB)
GASB No. 77, Abatements – Go Viral with GASB 77
GASB No. 87, Leases
GASB No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of Construction
IRS Delays Implementation of 3% Withholding on Payments for Goods and Services
OMB A‐133 Compliance Supplements
OMB Revisions to A‐133
OPEB, What You Need to Know
Public Funds and Secure Deposit Program
Re‐Examination of the GASB 34 Reporting Model
Rotating or Not Rotating Auditors
Property Tax Assessments
Refunding Debt
Sales & Use Taxes on Retail Sales of Jet Fuel
Sales Tax Collections and Remittances by the State
SAS Clarity Standards and Group Audits
Single Audit, including Uniform Guidance (several)
Social Security Administration (SSA) Incentive Payments
Special Purpose Local Option Sales Taxes (SPLOST) Expenditures
Supplemental Social Security for Inmates
The New Tax Cuts and Jobs Act – Impact on Bond Refunding
The Return of the Component Unit – GASB 61
Uniform Guidance & New Procurement Requirements
What’s Happening with Property Tax Assessments

Communication. In an effort to better communicate our free continuing education plans and
newsletters, please email Paige Vercoe at pvercoe@mjcpa.com (send corresponding copy to
tscott@mjcpa.com), and provide individual names, mailing addresses, email addresses and
phone numbers of anyone you wish to participate and be included in our database.
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CLOSING
This information is intended solely for the use of the Commission’s management, and others
within the Commission’s organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.
We appreciate the opportunity to serve the Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer
Commission and look forward to serving the Commission in the future. Thank you.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Commissioners of the
Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Brunswick, Georgia
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water &
Sewer Commission (the “Commission”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Commission as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (on pages 3 through 10), the Schedule of Changes in the Commission’s Net Pension Liability and Related
Ratios (on page 33), and the Schedule of Commission Contributions (on page 34) be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 6, 2020, on our
consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Savannah, Georgia
October 6, 2020
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2020

As management of the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission (the "Commission"), we offer
readers of the Commission’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

Proprietary Fund Accounting and Reporting
The Commission operates as a single fund in a business-like manner. Thus, the Commission uses the accrual
approach to account for and report financial transactions. This means that revenues are recognized as they are
earned and expenses are recognized as the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash inflows and
outflows. All assets and liabilities that are measurable and probable are included in the financial statements. The full
acquisition costs of all fixed assets are included in the Statement of Net Position and are depreciated over their
estimated useful life. Consequently, the Commission’s accounting practices generally resemble a commercial entity’s
approach.

Overview of the Financial Statements
Net Position: The following table reflects the overall financial condition of the Commission as of the last two fiscal
years:

2020
9,440,733
$
50,628,008
130,475,102

2019
$
8,915,699
40,874,945
131,058,682

190,543,843

180,849,326

2,595,524

2,485,763

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

7,449,024
33,892,311

8,130,618
35,728,157

Total liabilities

41,341,335

43,858,775

12,980

257,912

98,723,930
636,335
1,095,602
51,329,185

96,517,125
720,880
1,359,660
40,620,737

$ 151,785,052

$ 139,218,402

Current assets
Restricted assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Restricted for Capital Projects
Unrestricted
Total net position
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The following table reflects the balances of current and restricted assets for the last two fiscal years.
2020
Current Assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net of
allowance for uncollectibles
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

$

4,294,095

2019
$

3,249,909
397,696
1,125,565
373,468

Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposits

2,526,092
3,913,717
915,232
1,231,863
328,795

$

9,440,733

$

8,915,699

$

3,117,039

$

3,192,360

Bond Funds:
Bond Construction Fund
Cost of Issuance Fund
Sinking Fund
Debt Service Reserve Fund
Capital Tap Fee Reserves:
City of Brunswick
Saint Simons Island
North Mainland
South Mainland
Operating, Repair and Replacement
and Capital Reserves
$

11,121
625,214
-

446
117,777
603,103
6,038

1,095,602
-

357,875
325,278
431,999
244,508

45,779,032

35,595,561

50,628,008

$

40,874,945

The increase in Restricted Assets is largely due to the collection of SPLOST funds and Repair and Replacement
Reserve transfers in advance of the completion of intended capital expenditures.
The Commission paid $992,394 in interest expense on its Series 2017 Revenue Bond, during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020. $25,176 in interest was paid on two capital leases.
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Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position: The following table illustrates the history of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position for the past two years.

2020
Operating revenues
Charges for services:
Water sales
Sewer sales
Connection fees
Other fees and charges
Total operating revenues

$

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Contractual services
Supplies
Electricity, natural gas and other fuel
Other costs
Depreciation expense
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income
Other income (loss)
Intergovernmental revenue - SPLOST
Interest expense and fiscal charges
Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net
Change in net position
Total net position, beginning
Total net position ending

10,219,101
20,706,800
1,326,598
2,387,816
34,640,315

2019

$

10,372,218
20,606,760
1,488,009
3,000,894
35,467,881

11,574,841
3,836,089
3,251,122
1,829,530
385,834
6,156,882
27,034,298

11,466,070
5,289,604
2,834,091
1,837,108
1,667,994
5,939,275
29,034,142

7,606,017

6,433,739

1,182,943
(425,599)
4,596,554
(1,225,513)
4,128,385

533,740
14,169
6,947,661
(1,264,914)
6,230,656

12,566,650

14,274,363

139,218,402

124,944,039

$ 151,785,052

$ 139,218,402

Water and Sewer Revenues – As of June 30, 2020 the Commission utilized a standardized billing structure and rates
for all districts. Customers are billed based on the infrastructure they utilize for provision of water and/or sewer service
for Debt Recovery Charges. Administrative and usage charges are standardized throughout the service area. All
meters are read electronically (radio read) each month and customers receive a monthly statement based on that
reading. As of June 30, 2020 the Commission has 30,487 (30,155 on 6/30/19) billable service addresses: 14,800 in
Brunswick, 10,972 on Saint Simons Island, 3,718 in the North Mainland and 997 in the South Mainland.

5

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Commission previously increased user rates effective July 1, 2018. Fees for services provided beyond providing
basic water and sewer use have been revised to more fully recapture the cost of those services. Additionally, the
Commission’s rate structure includes a base amount of water and sewer use as a fixed monthly charge.
Base Fee – Includes Administrative Fees and 1,000 Gallons Usage Per Service
Administrative Base Charge (Water) - $7.60 per customer
Administrative Base Charge (Sewer) - $13.06 per customer
Debt Recovery Charges
Debt Recovery Charge (Water) – $2.27 per Residential Equivalent Unit (REU)
Debt Recovery Charge (Sewer) – $5.57 per Residential Equivalent Unit (REU)
Usage Fees
Water revenues - All water is metered and sold at a usage rate per gallon on an increasing step rate. The rates in
place, stated in 1,000 increments, for the year ended June 30, 2020 were:
Water Usage Charges:
$.00 for the first 1,000 gallons
$2.16 per thousand gallons for 1,000 to 3,000 gallons
$2.89 per thousand gallons for 3,001 to 6,000 gallons
$3.61 per thousand gallons for 6,001 to 20,000 gallons
$4.32 per thousand gallons for 20,001 or more total gallons
Sewer charges are based on metered water usage at the rate of $7.73 per thousand gallons for usage over 1,001
gallons. The rate resolution also includes a sewer only flat rate based on 7,000 gallons per REU.
Connection fees (Capital tap fees) - A connection fee is required for all new connections onto the system. The fees
are charged on the basis of meter size. In addition, if the Commission is required to tap into the water or sewer main
and run the service line to the customer’s property, the Commission charges a fee to recover the cost for doing so.
The fees as of June 30, 2020 were:
Meter Size
Gallons Per Minute (GPM)
5/8”
20
1"
50
1.5"
100
2"
160
3"
350
4"
600
6"
1350
8"
1600
10" or Larger - To be calculated on individual basis.
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Water
$
920.00
2,300.00
4,600.00
7,360.00
16,100.00
27,600.00
62,100.00
73,600.00

Sewer
$ 1,800.00
4,500.00
9,000.00
14,400.00
31,500.00
54,000.00
121,500.00
144,000.00

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other fees and charges – The Commission charges 1.5% of arrears per month for late payments. Additionally, as in
past years, the Commission maintains various fees for services and actions taken in collection efforts. Other revenues
such as tower rentals and inspection fees are also included in this line item.
Personnel Services – This is the cost of the Commission for the salaries and wages of personnel and the related
payroll taxes and benefits provided. The Commission employs 162 full-time employees in ten departments and
divisions. Administration and management includes the Office of the Director, Planning and Construction, Purchasing
and the Finance departments with 60 employees. Facilities maintenance employs 5 positions. Wastewater operations
includes the Systems Pumping and Maintenance, and Wastewater Treatment divisions with 72 employees. The Water
Production and Water Distribution divisions employs 25 people. The Commission provides eligible employees with
health insurance, on a participatory basis, long-term disability insurance and a defined benefit retirement plan
administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. The Commission is fully insured for workers compensation and
is self–insured for unemployment insurance. Salaries and wages increased for the fiscal year as the result of the
implementation of a Cost-of-living adjustment (“COLA”). All Commission employees received a minimum salary
increase of 1.52% in July 2019. The implementation of an annual COLA is designed to make the Commission
competitive in attracting and retaining employees. A COLA will be implemented for the first full pay period of July
annually in an amount equal to the CPI-U. The pay scale of the Commission will be adjusted by an equal percentage.
Personnel Services Costs consist of the following:
2020
7,877,077
1,837,049
826,049
564,485
269,126
143,192
11,176
30,000
16,687
$ 11,574,841

Salaries, wages, and overtime
Group insurance
Pension
FICA and medicare
Workers compensation insurance
Personnel administration
Temporary services
Commissioner stipends
Other employee benefits

$

2019
7,866,222
1,915,468
594,181
561,470
295,721
143,923
44,338
30,000
14,747
$ 11,466,070

$

As stated in Note 7 – Defined Pension Plan, “calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect as of
September 30, 2019”. The timing differences between the actuarial valuation and the fiscal year of the Commission
results in a difference between salaries, wages and overtime in the financial statements and covered payroll as stated
in the Schedule of Commission’s Contributions of $310,168 and $71,321 for 2020 and 2019, respectively. Employee
turnover, retirements, merit based wage adjustments and changes in accruals for wages and compensated absences
between the plan date and the fiscal year date also contribute to the differences.
Contractual Services – This cost consists of services that are required for the functions and operations of the
Commission which are necessary to purchase from outside sources, such as legal, auditing and insurance services.
Purchasing other types of services, such as personnel administration and printing, inserting and mailing of bills has
been found to be the most cost effective by the Commission.
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Supplies – These costs consist of the following:

Chemicals, including Oxygen
Infrastructure and Pump Maintenance
Office, Computer, Lab and General Supplies
Small Equipment
Uniforms
Hurricane Preparedness

$

$

2020
1,186,778
1,433,734
292,712
92,400
124,939
120,559
3,251,122

$

$

2019
423,310
1,836,347
201,344
138,728
114,078
120,284
2,834,091

Depreciation – This is the Commission’s second largest expense line item. It continues to grow each year as the
Commission continues to complete construction projects and bring them on line. Capital Assets, before depreciation,
increased by $5.117 million from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020.
Interest Income – Funds are invested as permitted in accordance with Chapter 83 of Title 36 of the Official Code of
Georgia Annotated (“O.C.G.A.”), which establishes guidelines for local government investment procedures. Interest
receivable of $139,867 and a market adjustment of $370,654 are included in the earnings amount.
Interest Expense – Interest expense consists of the interest on the Commission Series 2017 Revenue Bond and two
capital leases. Fiscal charges for the year ended June 30, 2020 were paid in the amount of $500.
Capital Contributions – Capital contributions are received by the dedication of privately constructed infrastructure to
the Commission and the Commission’s acceptance of that infrastructure. Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2020, were $832,248. In all cases, the assets are recorded at their acquisition value and are capitalized by the
Commission.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets:
The Commission’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2019 amounts to $130,475,102 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land and easements, buildings, water wells, elevated storage
tanks, wastewater treatment plants, system improvements, vehicles and equipment. A summary of the major
infrastructure is as follows:
Brunswick
District
1
160
38
3,460
60

Wastewater treatment facilities
Miles of gravity sewer lines
Miles of forced main sewer lines
Sewer manholes
Sewer lift stations
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Glynn
District
2
179
116
4,757
97

Total
3
339
154
8,217
157

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Brunswick
District
11
7
7
167
760

Water wells
Elevated water storage towers
Water pumping facilites
Miles of water lines
Fire hydrants

Glynn
District

Total
20
10
13
612
4,679

9
3
6
445
3,919

Debt Administration:
As an entity created by an act of the General Assembly of the State of Georgia, long-term borrowing by the
Commission is provided through Revenue Bonds issued by the Commission and loans from the Georgia
Environmental Finance Authority (“GEFA”).
On December 27, 2017, the Commission issued $36,364,000 of Revenue Bonds at an average yield of 2.904% and
a final maturity of June 1, 2035. The proceeds from these bonds were used to defease Series 2010C Revenue Bonds
of the Commission and to pay the related costs of issuance associated with the 2017 Bond. No additional funds were
borrowed in this issue.
The ratings for the 2017 issue were AAA from Standard & Poor’s and Aa3 from Moody’s. These ratings were
unchanged from the issuance of the 2010C Revenue Bonds.
The 2017 Revenue Bonds include a Rate Covenant containing the requirement that Net Revenues are at least equal
to 1.10 times Debt Service in the then current Sinking Fund Year. For the current fiscal year, this debt coverage ratio
has been computed to be 4.10 based on total revenues and 3.72 on revenues net of connection fees as follows:
Income Before Contributions
Add: Depreciation Expense
Amortization of Bond Issuance
Bond Interest (before amortization of premium)

$

$

$

11,734,402
6,156,882
158,616
992,394
19,042,294
(4,596,554)
14,445,740

$

11,734,402
6,156,882
158,616
992,394
19,042,294
(4,596,554)
(1,326,598)
13,119,142

$

3,526,511

$

3,526,511

Less: Intergovernmental revenue - SPLOST
Connection fees

Debt Service
Debt Coverage Ratio

4.10
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Currently Known Conditions Affecting Future Operations
Capital projects are planned, or underway, to increase capacity in areas identified to have the greatest growth
potential. Other areas may have incremental increases in capacity through such methods as increasing pump sizes
or adding additional pumping capacity.
The implementation of formal asset management program for all divisions continues to move forward and is gaining
momentum toward full implementation. This program will facilitate greater operational efficiencies, provide clear asset
condition tracking and therefore greater understanding of proactive maintenance and reinvestment needs to allow the
Commission to set priorities and allocate resources more effectively.
The Commission has projects included in the Glynn County SPLOST in the amount of $15,000,000. The remainder
of the funding for the necessary improvements will be obtained through a combination of debt financing and
developer/builder contributions. As of June 30, 2020, with a receivable recorded for $397,696 of monies received in
July 2020, the Commission has received the full $15,000,000 from SPLOST. The balance of the SPLOST funds will
be expended over the upcoming months as projects are progressing and completed.
In September 2019 the Commission was notified it had been approved for a $15,000,000 loan through the GEFA for
capital projects at its wastewater treatment plants and trenchless rehabilitation of sanitary sewer lines. In June 2019,
an application for 67 lift station transfer switches was approved. In September 2019 an application to Georgia
Emergency Management Agency for the installation of 22 additional lift station transfer switches was approved.

Further Information
This financial overview is designed to provide readers with a general overview of the Commission’s finances, and to
show accountability. If you have questions or would like further information about this financial report, you may contact
officials at the Brunswick-Glynn Joint Water and Sewer Commission located at 1703 Gloucester St., Brunswick,
Georgia 31520.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash
Restricted investments

$

4,294,095
3,249,909
397,696
1,125,565
373,468
17,268,189
33,359,819

Total current assets

60,068,741

Non-current assets
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

10,276,333
250,982,117
(130,783,348)
130,475,102

Total assets

$

190,543,843

$

1,221,055
1,374,469

$

2,595,524

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred charges on refunding
Pension
Total deferred outflows of resources

(Continued)

11

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payable from current assets:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Compensated absences payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Current portion of capital leases payable
Total current liabilities payable from current assets

$

Payable from restricted assets:
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits payable
Current portion of revenue bonds payable
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets

928,152
299,595
223,653
432,502
434,022
2,317,924

82,844
3,017,256
2,031,000
5,131,100

Total current liabilities

7,449,024

Long-term liabilities
Revenue bonds payable, net
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability
Total long-term liabilities

29,825,000
682,205
143,655
3,241,451
33,892,311

Total liabilities

$

41,341,335

$

12,980

$

12,980

$

98,723,930
636,335
1,095,602
51,329,185

$

151,785,052

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Operating revenues
Charges for services:
Water sales
Sewer sales
Connection fees
Other fees and charges
Total operating revenues

$

Operating expenses
Personnel services
Contractual services
Supplies
Electricity, natural gas, and other fuel
Other costs
Depreciation expense
Total operating expenses

10,219,101
20,706,800
1,326,598
2,387,816
34,640,315

11,574,841
3,836,089
3,251,122
1,829,530
385,834
6,156,882
27,034,298

Operating income

7,606,017

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income
Other non-operating expense
Intergovernmental revenue
Interest expense and fiscal charges
Total non-operating revenues, net

1,182,943
(425,599)
4,596,554
(1,225,513)
4,128,385

Income before contributions

11,734,402

Capital contributions

832,248

Change in net position

12,566,650

Total net position, beginning of year

139,218,402
$

Total net position, end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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151,785,052

BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Principal payments on long-term borrowings
Interest paid on long-term borrowings
Intergovernmental receipts
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

35,304,123
(9,153,794)
(11,571,050)
14,579,279

(5,596,562)
429,909
(2,954,381)
(1,234,212)
5,114,090
(4,241,156)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities

(10,537,274)
1,182,943
(9,354,331)

Net increase in cash

983,792

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

20,578,492

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

21,562,284

Classified as:
Cash
Restricted assets, cash

$

4,294,095
17,268,189
21,562,284

$
(Continued)

14

BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventory
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in deferred outflows of resources
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in retainage payable
Decrease in customer deposits payable
Decrease in accrued compensated absences
Increase in net pension liability
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources
Net cash provided by operating activities

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions - capital assets

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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$

7,606,017

6,156,882
663,808
106,298
(44,673)
(109,761)
(330,544)
253,004
(104,636)
(52,967)
680,783
(244,932)
$

14,579,279

$

832,248

BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
The Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission (the “Commission”) was established
by an act of the Georgia State Assembly in 2006 and approved by referendum on July 18, 2006. The
Commission is governed by a seven-member board of Commissioners. The Act creating the
Commission was amended in 2012 to change the structure of the governing body. As of January 1,
2013, the governing body consists of: one member appointed by the City of Brunswick and one
member appointed by Glynn County from their respective Boards of Commissioners; three members
selected by the Grand Jury of Glynn County, and two members elected in the county-wide
general election. The Commission provides and accounts for the provision of water and sewer
services to the residents of Glynn County and the City of Brunswick.
In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB”) Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement 39,
Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, and GASB Statement 61, The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, which defines a primary government as an entity with a
governing body elected in a general election, and which is legally separate and fiscally independent.
Any entity that does not meet the above criteria is potentially a component unit of a primary
government.
A component unit is a legally separate entity for which a primary government is financially accountable
by virtue of the fact that it both appoints the governing board and is able to impose its will on the
component unit, or the fact that it provides financial benefits or imposes a financial burden on the
primary government.
Based on the above requirements, there are no entities which meet the criteria detailed above for
inclusion with the Commission's financial statements as component units, nor is the Commission
considered a component unit.

Fund Accounting
The Commission uses one fund to report on its financial position and the results of its operations.
Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain government functions and activities.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fund Accounting (Continued)
A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The fund presented in
this report is a Proprietary Fund Type - Enterprise Fund. Enterprise Funds are used to account for
those operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the
board has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is
necessary for management accountability.

Measurement Focus
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus
and use the accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows,
deferred inflows, and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included in the
Statement of Net Position. Net position is segregated into net investment in capital assets and
restricted and unrestricted net position components. Proprietary fund operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under this method, revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Commission are charges for goods and services provided. Operating expenses of the
Commission include the cost of these goods and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Basis of Accounting
The GASB is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The Commission exclusively follows the standards set forth by the
GASB for its proprietary operations.

Management Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Cash and Investments
Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date
within three months of the date acquired by the Commission.
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Commission considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with an original maturity date of three months or less, and customer
deposits to be cash equivalents.

Customer Accounts Receivable
Customer accounts receivable include billed, but uncollected amounts and unbilled receivables based
upon a pro rata amount of subsequent monthly billings. Allowances for doubtful accounts are
maintained based on historical results adjusted to reflect current conditions.

Inventories
Inventories of materials and supplies are stated at cost, which approximates market, using the firstin/first-out (“FIFO”) method. The Commission uses the consumption method of accounting for
inventory, in that as materials are purchased, they are coded to inventory and then as subsequently
used, they are expensed.

Restricted Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of three restricted fund types. Amounts recorded in this
category include funds received in payment of customer deposits and refunds of customer deposits,
funds received in payment of capital tap fees, and certain proceeds from the issuance of the
Commission's revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, and are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond
covenants.

Capital Assets
Capital assets are carried at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their acquisition value.
These assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life using the straight-line method. The
Commission defines its capitalization policy as assets costing $5,000 and having an estimated useful
life of greater than three years.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Capital Assets (Continued)
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is reflected in the capitalized value
of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Asset Classification
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Years
10 – 50
5 – 50
2 – 25
5

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The Commission had four items that
qualify for reporting in this category. Three items relate to the pension as deferred outflows of
resources during the year ended June 30, 2020, under the heading “pension.” Experience losses
result from periodic studies by the Commission’s actuary, which adjust the net pension liability for
actual experience for certain trend information that was previously assumed, for example the
assumed dates of retirement of plan members. These experience losses are recorded as deferred
outflows of resources and are amortized into pension expense over the expected remaining service
lives of the plan members. Changes in actuarial assumptions, which adjust the net pension liability,
are recorded as deferred outflows of resources and are amortized into pension expense over the
expected remaining service lives of plan members. Additionally, any contributions made by the
Commission to the pension plan before year-end, but subsequent to the measurement date of the
Commission’s net pension liability are reported as deferred outflows of resources. The fourth item
relates to the deferred charge on refunding. This results from the difference in the carrying value of
the refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter
of the life of the refunded debt or the refunding debt.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of fund balance that applies to future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Commission reported two items
related to their pension as deferred inflows of resources during the year ended June 30, 2020, under
the heading “pension.” Changes in actuarial assumptions which adjust the net pension liability are
recorded as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources and are amortized against
pension expense over a five-year period. In addition, the difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments is deferred and amortized against pension expense over a
five-year period, resulting in recognition as a deferred inflow of resources.

Compensated Absences
The liability for compensated absences has been accrued and reported in the Statement of Net
Position. The Commission permits employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. Employees may carry over a maximum of 160 hours of vacation time from year to year.
Accumulated vacation benefits will be liquidated in future years as employees elect to use them or
will be paid upon termination of employment. Accumulated sick pay benefits are not payable upon
termination of employment. In the normal course of business, all payments of accumulated benefits
will be funded by revenues of the year in which the benefits are paid. All compensated absences are
accrued when earned by employees. An employee may accrue an unlimited amount of sick leave.
Sick leave may be taken only for personal illness or illness of an immediate family member.

Long-Term Obligations
Long-term debt and other obligations financed by the Commission are reported as liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred refunding costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are expensed in the
year incurred.
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NOTE 3.

RECEIVABLES
Receivables, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, consisted of the following
at June 30, 2020:

Receivables
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts
Net receivables

NOTE 4.

$
$

3,593,574
(343,665)
3,249,909

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows:
Beginning
Balance

Capital assets, not
being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total
Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings
Site improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Office furniture and
equipment
Vehicles
Total
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings
Site improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Office furniture and
equipment
Vehicles
Total
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

$

1,909,037
8,842,199
10,751,236

Additions

$

4,925,580
4,925,580

Transfers

$

Ending
Balance

Deletions

(4,555,718)
(4,555,718)

$ (844,765)
(844,765)

$

1,064,272
9,212,061
10,276,333

4,159,433
92,792
224,476,914
10,098,303

832,249
247,899

4,555,718
-

(42,975)

4,159,433
92,792
229,864,881
10,303,227

3,546,619
2,645,483
245,019,544

20,850
402,232
1,503,230

4,555,718

(53,400)
(96,375)

3,567,469
2,994,315
250,982,117

(581,792)
(6,662)
(111,436,892)
(7,961,912)

(113,184)
(1,454)
(4,699,027)
(751,040)

-

32,232

(694,976)
(8,116)
(116,135,919)
(8,680,720)

(2,861,646)
(1,863,194)
(124,712,098)

(308,024)
(284,153)
(6,156,882)

-

53,400
85,632

(3,169,670)
(2,093,947)
(130,783,348)

120,307,446

(4,653,652)

4,555,718

(10,743)

120,198,769

-

$ (855,508)

$ 130,475,102

$ 131,058,682

$

271,928
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NOTE 5.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
The following is a summary of long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2020:
Beginning
Balance

Additions

Reductions

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

Revenue bonds payable
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability

$ 34,384,000
1,542,608
420,275
2,560,668

$

82,338
1,447,044

$ (2,528,000)
(426,381)
(135,305)
(766,261)

$ 31,856,000
1,116,227
367,308
3,241,451

$ 2,031,000
434,022
223,653
-

Total long-term liabilities

$ 38,907,551

$ 1,529,382

$ (3,855,947)

$ 36,580,986

$ 2,688,675

Revenue Bonds
In December 2017, the Commission issued Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 in the amount
of $36,364,000. The Series 2017 bonds were issued to provide funds to refund (advance refunding)
all of the Commission’s 2010C Revenues Bonds. The net proceeds were deposited in an irrevocable
trust with an escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt service payment on the refunded bonds.
As a result, the Series 2010C bonds are considered defeased and the liability for those bonds has
been removed from the Statement of Net Position. The advance refunding of the Series 2010C bonds
resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of
$1,618,208. The difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow
of resources, is being charged to expense through the year 2035 using the effective interest method.
The refunding decreased the total debt service payments over the next 18 years by $6,492,690 and
produced an economic gain of $2,659,689. Principal payments are due each year on June 1,
beginning June 1, 2019. Interest payments are due each December 1 and June 1, beginning June 1,
2018. The bonds are secured by a pledge and lien on revenues of the water and sewer systems and
yield 2.904% interest.
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NOTE 5.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Debt service requirements to maturity on the revenue bonds are as follows:
Fiscal Year Payable
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026 – 2030
2031 – 2035
Total

Principal
$
2,031,000
2,087,000
2,145,000
1,811,000
1,868,000
10,176,000
11,738,000
$ 31,856,000

Interest
$
925,098
866,118
805,512
743,221
690,629
2,607,792
1,042,246
$
7,680,616

Total
$
2,956,098
2,953,118
2,950,512
2,950,512
2,558,629
12,783,792
12,780,246
$ 39,932,907

Capital Leases
The Commission has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of certain
assets. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore,
have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their
inception.
The following is an analysis of machinery and equipment under capital leases as of June 30, 2020:
Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

$

$

2,402,884
(1,516,402)
886,482

The Commission reported $400,301 of depreciation expense in assets under capital leases as of
June 30, 2020.
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NOTE 5.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Capital Leases (Continued)
The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, and
the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2020:
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest

454,136
454,136
140,575
105,430
1,154,277
(38,050)
$

NOTE 6.

1,116,227

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS AND RESTRICTED NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets – The balances that make up the Commission’s net investment
in capital assets at June 30, 2020, are as follows:
Net capital assets
Deferred charges on refunding
Less: Capital related debt

$ 130,475,102
1,221,055
(32,972,227)

Net investment in capital assets

$

98,723,930

Restricted for Debt Service – These funds are set aside by the Commission for the retirement of
future debt payments in accordance with bond requirements.
Restricted for Capital Projects – These funds are capital tap fees collected by the Commission for
the improvement of the water and sewer system infrastructure.
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NOTE 7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description
The Commission, as authorized by the Board of Commissioners, has established a non-contributory
defined benefit pension plan, the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Retirement Plan (the “Plan”), covering substantially all of the Commission’s employees. The
Commission’s pension plan is administered through the Georgia Municipal Employee Benefit System
(“GMEBS”), an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Georgia Municipal
Association. The Plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are provided by the Plan whereby
retirees receive between 1% and 1.75% multiplied by the average of the five highest years of regular
earnings multiplied by the total credited years of service. The Board of Commissioners, in its role as
the Plan sponsor, has the governing authority to establish and amend from time to time, the benefits
provided and the contribution rates of the Commission and its employees. The Georgia Municipal
Association issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for GMEBS. That report may be obtained at www.gmanet.com or by
writing to Georgia Municipal Association, Risk Management and Employee Benefit Services, 201
Pryor Street, NW, Atlanta, Georgia 30303, or by calling (404) 688-0472.
Plan Membership. As of January 1, 2020, pension plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits
Active plan members
Total

19
35
151
205

Contributions. The Plan is subject to minimum funding standards of the Georgia Public Retirement
Systems Standards law. The Board of Trustees of GMEBS has adopted a recommended actuarial
funding policy for the plan which meets state minimum requirements and will accumulate sufficient
funds to provide the benefits under the Plan. The funding policy for the Plan, as adopted by the
Commission’s Board, is to contribute an amount equal to the actuarially recommended contribution
rate. This rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned
by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission's contribution rate was 7.73% of annual payroll.
Commission contributions to the Plan were $584,691 for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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NOTE 7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net Pension Liability of the Commission
The Commission’s net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 2019. The total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
January 1, 2020.
Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:
Inflation

2.25%

Salary increases

3.00% – 8.50%, including inflation

Investment rate of return

7.375%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with gender-distinct
rates, set forward two years for males and one year for females.
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 – June 30, 2014.
Salary increase adjustments were assumed to be 3.00% although the Plan allowance for annual cost
of living adjustment is variable, as established by the Commission Board, in an amount not to exceed
8.50%.
Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.375%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions
will be made at the current contribution rate and that Commission contributions will be made at rates
equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all of the projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net Pension Liability of the Commission (Continued)
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan's target asset allocation as of September 30, 2019, are summarized in the following
table:

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return*
6.41%
6.96%
1.96%
4.76%
3.06%

Target
Allocation
45%
20%
20%
10%
5%
-%
100%

Asset Class
Domestic equity
International equity
Domestic fixed income
Real estate
Global fixed income
Cash

* Rates shown are net of the 2.25% assumed rate of inflation.
Changes in the Net Pension Liability of the Commission. The changes in the components of the net
pension liability of the Commission for the year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows:
Total Pension
Liability
Balances at June 30, 2019
Changes for the year:
Service Cost
Interest
Differences between expected
and actual experience
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Other changes
Net Changes
Balances at June 30, 2020

$

$
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(a)
7,862,550

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
$

(b)
5,301,882

415,887
615,911

-

206,543
-

584,691
181,570

(132,569)
185,487
1,291,259
9,153,809

(132,569)
(23,216)
610,476
5,912,358

$

Net Pension
Liability
$

(a) - (b)
2,560,668
415,887
615,911
206,543
(584,691)
(181,570)

$

23,216
185,487
680,783
3,241,451

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net Pension Liability of the Commission (Continued)
The required schedule of changes in the Commission’s net pension liability and related ratios
immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information
about whether the value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the total
pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following presents the
net pension liability of the Commission, calculated using the discount rate of 7.375%, as well as what
the Commission's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1percentage-point lower (6.375%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.375%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(6.375%)
Commission's net pension liability

$

4,598,351

Current
Discount Rate
(7.375%)
$

3,241,451

1% Increase
(8.375%)
$

2,120,375

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan
in effect as of September 30, 2019, and the current sharing pattern of costs between employer and
employee.
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NOTE 7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission recognized a pension expense of $826,049. At
June 30, 2020, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
investments
Commission contributions subsequent
to the measurement date
Total

$

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

675,767
205,500

$

-

$

493,202
1,374,469

6,012

6,968

$

12,980

Commission contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $493,202 are reported as deferred
outflows of resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending June 30, 2021.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total

$

$

31

145,083
165,554
219,968
186,144
95,534
56,004
868,287

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to: torts; theft of assets; damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Commission carries
commercial insurance for these risks of loss, as well as other risks of loss such as workers’
compensation insurance and general property and liability insurance.

NOTE 9.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
At June 30, 2020, in addition to the liabilities enumerated on the balance sheet, the Commission also
had contractual commitments on uncompleted construction contracts in the amount of $4,085,558 for
the completion of various projects.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COMMISSION’S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

2020
Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Other

$

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expenses

415,887
615,911

2019
$

$

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

$

290,707
452,681

$

293,353
399,112

2016
$

245,679
335,690

2015
$

244,062
298,149

206,543
-

276,712
-

227,855
81,397

96,885
-

331,132
-

20,708
(24,046)

(132,569)
185,487

(118,545)
-

(83,071)
-

(113,206)
-

(75,099)
-

(33,844)
-

969,569

676,144

837,402

505,029

1,291,259

$

318,851
533,380

2017

2018

7,862,550
9,153,809

584,691
181,570

1,010,398

$

6,852,152
7,862,550

$

509,910
456,652

$

$

5,882,583
6,852,152

466,145
559,750

$

$

5,206,439
5,882,583

387,759
341,613

$

$

4,369,037
5,206,439

365,501
18,511

$

$

3,864,008
4,369,037

381,081
246,730

(132,569)
(23,216)

(118,545)
(23,796)

(83,071)
(25,025)

(113,206)
(12,450)

(75,099)
(12,226)

(33,844)
(9,731)

610,476

824,221

917,799

603,716

296,687

584,236

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

$

5,301,882
5,912,358

$

4,477,661
5,301,882

$

3,559,862
4,477,661

$

2,956,146
3,559,862

$

2,659,459
2,956,146

$

2,075,223
2,659,459

Commission's net pension liability ending (a) - (b)

$

3,241,451

$

2,560,668

$

2,374,491

$

2,322,721

$

2,250,293

$

1,709,578

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability
Covered payroll
Commission's net pension liability as a
percentage of covered payroll

64.59%
$

7,566,909

67.43%
$

7,554,006

42.84%

33.90%

Notes to the Schedule
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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65.35%
$

6,156,245

38.57%

60.52%
$

5,362,432

43.31%

56.78%
$

5,174,265

43.49%

60.87%
$

4,621,888

36.99%

BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION’S CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

2020
Actuarially determined contribution

$

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

2019

584,691

$

2018

560,387

584,691

$

560,387

2017

493,084

$

2016

457,166

493,084

$

457,166

2015

364,624

$

364,624

365,794
365,794

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Covered payroll

$

7,877,077

$

7,794,901

$

7,554,006

$

6,156,245

$

5,362,432

$

5,174,265

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

7.42%

7.19%

6.53%

7.43%

Notes to the Schedule:
Valuation Date

January 1, 2020

Actuarial Cost Method

Projected Unit Credit

Amortization Method

Closed level dollar for remaining unfunded liability

Remaining Amortization Period

Remaining amortization period varies for the bases, with a net
effective amortization period of 14 years.

Asset Valuation Method

Sum of actuarial value at beginning of year and the cash flow during
the year plus the assumed investment return, adjusted by 10% of the
amount that the value exceeds or is less than the market value at end
of year. The actuarial value is adjusted, if necessary, to be within 20%
of market value.

Actuarial Assumptions:
Net Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments

7.38%
2.25% plus service based merit increases
0.00%

The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.

34

6.80%

7.07%

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners of the
Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Brunswick, Georgia
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer
Commission (the “Commission”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 6, 2020.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Commission’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

6001 CHATHAM CENTER DRIVE, SUITE 250 • SAVANNAH, GEORGIA 31405 • 912-232-1622 • www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Savannah, Georgia
October 6, 2020
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

SECTION I
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?

Yes

X

No

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Yes

X

None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Yes

X

No

Federal Awards
Not applicable as a single audit was not performed for the year ended June 30, 2020, due to the Commission not
expending $750,000 or more of federal funds.

SECTION II
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Not applicable.

SECTION III
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Not applicable.

SECTION IV
PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
None noted.
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Brunswick-Glynn County
Joint Water and Sewer Commission

Memorandum
To:

BGJWSC Board of Commissioners

From:

Andrew Burroughs, Executive Director

Date:

Thursday, October 15, 2020

Re:

Approval -- Surplus Inventory/Equipment

Background
JWSC staff has determined the following assets to no longer be of use to the mission of the JWSC.

Material Id

Material Description

Surplus
Qty

Unit
Cost

Total Cost

AMRRG

1"x 24" MH Riser Ring

30

$35.00

$1,050.00

AMRRJ

1-1/2" x 24" MH Riser Ring

45

$38.00

$1,710.00

AMRRK

2"x 24" MH Riser Ring

32

$40.00

$1,280.00

USF1171.5MHR

1-1/2" 117 MH Riser Ring & Frame

64

$104.75

$6,704.00

USF117-2MHR

1-1/2" 117 MH Riser Ring & Frame

44

$117.65

$5,176.60

USF117MHR

1-1/2" 117 MH Riser Ring & Frame

39

$96.50

$3,763.50

TOTAL

$19,684.10

Comments

Wrong size - inner ring
of lip is too thick for
existing covers

Outer band fits but is too
thin - issues with
existing cover bending
over edges; transitioning
all to composite material

Staff Report
Staff recommends declaring the items above as surplus and authorizing their disposal in a manner most beneficial to
the JWSC.
Recommended Action
To dispose of this property, the Brunswick Glynn Joint Water & Sewer Commission must declare the property as
surplus. Once declared as surplus, the Director of Procurement will dispose of the property in a manner most beneficial
to the JWSC. Typically vehicles and equipment declared surplus will be posted to the GovDeals website.
Recommended Motion
“I make a motion that the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission approve the above listed
items as surplus to be disposed of in a manner most beneficial to the JWSC ”

Brunswick-Glynn County
Joint Water and Sewer Commission

Memorandum
To:

BGJWSC Board of Commissioners

From:

Andrew Burroughs, Executive Director

Date:

Thursday, October 15, 2020

Re:

Approval – Contract Award – Fiscal Year 2021 Structural Manhole Rehabilitation

Background
JWSC released Invitation for Bid No. 21-002, Fiscal Year 2021 Structural Manhole Rehabilitation Project for the
BGJWSC on Monday, August 17, 2020. The Scope of Work includes rehabilitation of seventy-three (73) manholes
within the JWSC system as a base bid with an alternate for three (3) lift station wet-wells that require rehabilitation.
JWSC has elected to take only the base bid price and forgo the wet-well rehabilitation. This project is intended to
reduce the I/I related issues throughout the JWSC service area, primarily due to corrosion issues.

Staff Report
One (1) firm responded with a proposal on September 29, 2020.
•

Bio-Nomic Services, Inc -- $242,035.00 base bid

JWSC staff has determined that the proposal submitted by Bio-Nomic Services is reasonable and in line with the scope
of work and overall project timeline of one-hundred twenty (120) days, as indicated in the IFB documents. Funding for
this project will come from the Systems Pumping & Maintenance Division Operations budget.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends entering into a contract with Bio-Nomic Services, Inc in the amount of $242,035.00 for Fiscal Year
2021 Structural Manhole Rehabilitation

Recommended Motion
“I make a motion that the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission approve the contract
award for Fiscal Year 2021 Structural Manhole Rehabilitation to Bio-Nomic Services Inc., in the amount of
$242,035.00.”

Enclosures
Bid Tab

EXHIBIT C
BID FORM – PAY ITEM SCHEDULE -- UPDATED SEPT 17, 2020
FY2021 STRUCTURAL MANHOLE REHABILITATION
BASE BID
Item Description

Quantity

Units

Unit Price

Bio-Nomic Services, Inc.

Total Price

Unit Price

Total

1

Mobilization

1

EA

$

$

$0.00

$0.00

2

Bypass Pumping

1

LS

$

$

$0.00

$0.00

3

Traffic Control

1

EA

$

$

$0.00

$0.00

MISCELLANEOUS

Sub-Total: MISCELLANEOUS

$0.00

$

San-Sewer Rehab

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE REHABILITATION
4

Rehabilitate MH #20300010 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,845.00

5

Rehabilitate MH #20380130 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,425.00

6

Rehabilitate MH #40020070 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,990.00

7

Rehabilitate MH #40020200 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,995.00

8

Rehabilitate MH #40020210 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,995.00

9

Rehabilitate MH #40020220 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,425.00

10

Rehabilitate MH #40020240 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

11

Rehabilitate MH #40022520 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,705.00

12

Rehabilitate MH #40021200 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,135.00

13

Rehabilitate MH #40021210 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,420.00

14

Rehabilitate MH #40030260 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,710.00

15

Rehabilitate MH #40031470 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,275.00

16

Rehabilitate MH #40060240 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,280.00

17

Rehabilitate MH #40060250 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,995.00

18

Rehabilitate MH #40060260 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,995.00

19

Rehabilitate MH #40070100 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,425.00

20

Rehabilitate MH #40110250 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,710.00

21

Rehabilitate MH #40150010 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

22

Rehabilitate MH #40150020 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

23

Rehabilitate MH #40150030 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

24

Rehabilitate MH #40150040 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,280.00

25

Rehabilitate MH #40150060 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,140.00

26

Rehabilitate MH #40210010 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,990.00

27

Rehabilitate MH #40210020 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,705.00

28

Rehabilitate MH #40210030 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,705.00

29

Rehabilitate MH #40210031 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,705.00

30

Rehabilitate MH #40210040 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,420.00

31

Rehabilitate MH #40210050 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,135.00

32

Rehabilitate MH #40210060 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,135.00

33

Rehabilitate MH #40210070 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,420.00

34

Rehabilitate MH #40210090 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,135.00

35

Rehabilitate MH #40210100 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,850.00

36

Rehabilitate MH #40210110 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,850.00

37

Rehabilitate MH #40220150 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,995.00

38

Rehabilitate MH #40210160 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,995.00

39

Rehabilitate MH #40210210 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,710.00

40

Rehabilitate MH #40210430 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,850.00

41

Rehabilitate MH #40210440 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

42

Rehabilitate MH #40210460 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,710.00

43

Rehabilitate MH #40220100 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

44

Rehabilitate MH #40350070 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$6,210.00

45

Rehabilitate MH #40350261 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,830.00

46

Rehabilitate MH #40360220 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,450.00

47

Rehabilitate MH #40440110 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,425.00

48

Rehabilitate MH #40440111 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,425.00

49

Rehabilitate MH #40480011 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,140.00

50

Rehabilitate MH #40480020 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,485.00

51

Rehabilitate MH #40480030 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,485.00

52

Rehabilitate MH #40480040 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,140.00

53

Rehabilitate MH #40480050 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,485.00

54

Rehabilitate MH #40480060 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,140.00

55

Rehabilitate MH #40480070 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,140.00

56

Rehabilitate MH #40480090 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,795.00

57

Rehabilitate MH #40480100 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,140.00

58

Rehabilitate MH #40480110 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,450.00

59

Rehabilitate MH #40480120 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,450.00

60

Rehabilitate MH #40480130 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,105.00

61

Rehabilitate MH #40480140 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,140.00

62

Rehabilitate MH #40480150 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,795.00

63

Rehabilitate MH #40480160 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,450.00

64

Rehabilitate MH #40480170 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,485.00

65

Rehabilitate MH #40480570 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

66

Rehabilitate MH #40590130 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$1,710.00

67

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0170 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$4,830.00

68

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0180 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,450.00

69

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0240 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,420.00

70

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0250 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,850.00

71

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0260 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,135.00

72

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0270 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$3,420.00

73

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0280 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

74

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0290 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,280.00

75

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP0300 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,850.00

76

Rehabilitate MH #4WTP1840 - Clean and Coat Existing Manhole

JOB

-

LUMP SUM

$

LUMP SUM

$2,565.00

Sub-Total: SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE REHABILITATION

$

VARIABLE COSTS
77

Additional Manhole Lining per 1/2"

1

VF

285

78

Point Repair -- Replace Ring & Cover in PAVEMENT

5

EA

2000

$285.00
$10,000.00

$224,250.00

79

Point Repair -- Replace Ring & Cover in GROUND/GRASS

5

EA

1500

$7,500.00

Sub-Total: VARIABLE COSTS

$17,785.00

BASE BID - GRAND TOTAL

$242,035.00

$

Bid Alternate #1
BID
80

Rehabilitate PS4055 Wetwell - Clean and Coat Existing Wetwell

JOB

- LUMP SUM

$

$50,000.00

81

Rehabilitate PS4107 Wetwell - Clean and Coat Existing Wetwell

JOB

- LUMP SUM

$

$60,500.00

82

Rehabilitate PS4128 Wetwell - Clean and Coat Existing Wetwell

JOB

- LUMP SUM

$

$60,500.00

Total Bid Alternate #1: PUMP STATION WETWELL REHABILITATION

$

$171,000.00

Brunswick-Glynn County
Joint Water and Sewer Commission

Memorandum
To:

Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission

From:

Andrew Burroughs, Executive Director

Date:

Thursday, October 15, 2020

Re:

APPROVAL – Harassment/Workplace Violence Policy Edits

Background
The JWSC Human Resources Standards of Practice Section 2.4 covers harassment, sexual harassment, and workplace
violence. The policy details what constitute these acts, steps required for reporting and investigating the acts, and
protections for whistleblowers. At the Human Resources Committee meeting on September 17, 2020, this policy was
discussed with the Committee and changes were recommended by both the Committee and Teamwork Services, Inc.
Mrs. Cindy Barnhart with Teamwork Services presented a suggested policy to the Committee based on the human
resource best practices.
Staff Report
The policy presented by Mrs. Barnhart was placed into the format of the JWSC Standards of Practice and a few minor
corrections were made elsewhere in the policy as noted during the last Committee meeting. No redlined version of this
policy is being presented due to the volume of edits being made at this time. These edits have been reviewed by JWSC
legal counsel and Teamwork Services. This item was presented to the JWSC Human Resources Committee on October
15, 2020.
Recommended Action
Staff recommends approving the edits to Section 2.4 of the JWSC Human Resources Standards of Practice as shown in
the attached.
Recommended Motion
“I move that the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission approve the edits to Section 2.4 of
the Human Resources Standards of Practice as presented.”
Enclosures
Draft Section 2.4

Section 2.4

HARASSMENT; WORKPLACE VIOLENCE
STANDARD
The JWSC strives to create and maintain a work environment in which people are treated with dignity, decency
and respect. The environment of the company should be characterized by mutual trust and the absence of
intimidation, oppression and exploitation. The JWSC will not tolerate unlawful discrimination or harassment of
any kind. Through enforcement of this policy and by education of employees, JWSC will seek to prevent, correct
and discipline behavior that violates this policy.
All employees, regardless of their positions, are covered by and are expected to comply with this policy and to
take appropriate measures to ensure that prohibited conduct does not occur. Appropriate disciplinary action
will be taken against any employee who violates this policy. Based on the seriousness of the offense, disciplinary
action may include verbal or written reprimand, suspension, or termination of employment.
Managers and supervisors who knowingly allow or tolerate discrimination, harassment or retaliation, or
managers and supervisors who fail to immediately report such misconduct, are in violation of this policy and are
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.
The JWSC, in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local anti-discrimination and harassment laws and
regulations, enforces this policy in accordance with the following definitions and guidelines:
PRACTICE GUIDELINES
1. Scope:
(1) Discrimination:
a. It is a violation of the JWSC’s policy to discriminate in the provision of employment
opportunities, benefits or privileges; to create discriminatory work conditions; or to use
discriminatory evaluative standards in employment if the basis of that discriminatory
treatment is, in whole or in part, the person’s race, color, national origin, age, religion,
disability status, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, genetic information,
marital status or other protected status.
b. Discrimination of this kind may also be strictly prohibited by a variety of federal, state and
local laws, including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of
1967 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. This policy is intended to comply
with the prohibitions stated in these anti-discrimination laws.
c. Discrimination in violation of this policy will be subject to disciplinary measures up to and
including termination.
(2) Harassment:
a. The JWSC prohibits harassment of any kind, including sexual harassment, and will take
appropriate and immediate action in response to complaints or knowledge of violations of
this policy. For purposes of this policy, harassment is any verbal or physical conduct
designed to threaten, intimidate or coerce an employee, co-worker, or any person working
for or on behalf of the JWSC.
b. The following examples of harassment are intended to be guidelines and are not exclusive

2.4‐1

when determining whether there has been a violation of this policy:
i.

Verbal harassment includes comments that are offensive or unwelcome regarding a
person’s race, color, national origin, age, religion, disability status, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity or expression, genetic information, marital status or
other protected status, including epithets, slurs and negative stereotyping.

ii.

Nonverbal harassment includes distribution, display or discussion of any written or
graphic material that ridicules, denigrates, insults, belittles or shows hostility,
aversion or disrespect towards an individual or group because of race, color, national
origin, age, religion, disability status, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression, genetic information, marital status or other protected status.

(3) Sexual Harassment:
a. Sexual harassment is a form of unlawful employment discrimination under Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 and is prohibited under JWSC’s anti-harassment policy. According
to the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC), sexual harassment is defined
as “unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical
conduct of a sexual nature ... when ... submission to or rejection of such conduct is used
as the basis for employment decisions ... or such conduct has the purpose or effect of ...
creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.”
b.

Sexual harassment occurs when unsolicited and unwelcome sexual advances, requests
for sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature:
i.

Is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment.

ii.

Is used as a basis for an employment decision.

iii.

Unreasonably interferes with an employee’s work performance or creates an
intimidating, hostile or otherwise offensive environment.

c.

Sexual harassment may take different forms. The following examples of sexual
harassment are intended to be guidelines and are not exclusive when determining
whether there has been a violation of this policy:
i.

Verbal sexual harassment includes innuendoes, suggestive comments, jokes of a
sexual nature, sexual propositions, lewd remarks and threats; requests for any type
of sexual favor (this includes repeated, unwelcome requests for dates); and verbal
abuse or “kidding” that is oriented toward a prohibitive form of harassment,
including that which is sexual in nature and unwelcome.

ii.

Nonverbal sexual harassment includes the distribution, display or discussion of any
written or graphic material, including calendars, posters and cartoons that are
sexually suggestive or show hostility toward an individual or group because of sex;
suggestive or insulting sounds; leering; staring; whistling; obscene gestures; content
2.4‐2

in letters, notes, facsimiles, e-mails, photos, text messages, tweets and Internet
postings; or other forms of communication that are sexual in nature and offensive.
iii.

d.

Physical sexual harassment includes unwelcome, unwanted physical contact,
including touching, tickling, pinching, patting, brushing up against, hugging,
cornering, kissing, fondling, and forced sexual intercourse or assault.
Courteous, mutually respectful, pleasant, non-coercive interactions between employees
that are appropriate in the workplace and acceptable to and welcomed by both parties
are not considered to be harassment, including sexual harassment.

(4) Consensual Romantic or Sexual Relationships:
a.

The JWSC strongly discourages romantic or sexual relationships between a manager or
other supervisory employee and an employee who reports directly or indirectly to that
person, because such relationships tend to create compromising conflicts of interest or
the appearance of such conflicts. In addition, such a relationship may give rise to the
perception by others that there is favoritism or bias in employment decisions affecting
the staff employee. Moreover, given the uneven balance of power within such
relationships, consent by the staff member is suspect and may be viewed by others, or at
a later date by the staff member, as having been given as the result of coercion or
intimidation. The atmosphere created by such appearances of bias, favoritism,
intimidation, coercion or exploitation undermines the spirit of trust and mutual respect
that is essential to a healthy work environment. If there is such a relationship, the parties
need to be aware that one or both may be moved to a different department or other
actions may be taken.

b.

If any employee of The JWSC enters into a consensual relationship that is romantic or
sexual in nature with an employee who reports directly or indirectly to that employee, or
if one of the parties is in a supervisory capacity in the same department in which the
other party works, the parties must notify the Human Resources Department or other
appropriate corporate officer. Because of potential issues regarding quid pro quo
harassment, JWSC has made reporting mandatory. This requirement does not apply to
employees who do not work in the same department or to parties where neither one
supervises or otherwise manages responsibilities over the other.

c.

Once the relationship is made known to the JWSC, the company will review the situation
with human resources in light of all the facts (reporting relationship between the parties,
effect on co-workers, job titles of the parties, etc.) and will determine whether one or
both parties need to be moved to another job or department. If it is determined that one
party must be moved, and there are jobs in other departments available for both, the
parties may decide who will be the one to apply for a new position. If the parties cannot
amicably come to a decision, or the party is not chosen for the position applied for, the
Human Resources Department and senior management will decide which party will be
moved. That decision will be based on which move will be least disruptive to the
organization as a whole. If no other jobs are available for either party, the parties will be
2.4‐3

given the option of terminating their relationship or resigning.
(5) Workplace violence: Any employee who makes threats, exhibits threatening behavior, or engages in
violent acts on JWSC‐owned or leased property may be removed from the premises immediately
pending the outcome of an investigation. Off‐site threats include, but are not limited to, threats
made via telephone, text, fax, electronic or conventional mail, or any other verbal or non‐verbal
communication medium.
(6) Whistleblower protection: Any employee who makes a good faith disclosure of the possible
existence of any activity constituting fraud, waste, abuse, or workplace health and safety violations
relating to JWSC operations shall be protected from harassment and retaliatory disciplinary action
for the employee’s disclosure of such misconduct. Notwithstanding, an employee may be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination from employment, when such disclosure is made
with the knowledge of its falsity or with willful disregard of the truth or falsity of the matter
disclosed.
2. Reporting an Incident of Discrimination, Harassment, Retaliation or Workplace Violence:
(1) The JWSC has established the following procedure for lodging a complaint of harassment,
discrimination, retaliation or workplace violence:
a.

Complaints should be submitted as soon as possible after an incident has occurred, preferably
in writing. The Human Resources Department may assist the complainant in completing a
written statement or, in the event an employee refuses to provide information in writing, the
Human Resources Department will dictate the verbal complaint.

b.

Upon receiving a complaint or being advised by a supervisor or manager that violation of this
policy may be occurring, the Human Resources Department will notify senior management and
review the complaint with the company’s legal counsel.

c.

The Human Resources Department will initiate an investigation to determine whether there is
a reasonable basis for believing that the alleged violation of this policy occurred.

d.

If necessary, the complainant and the respondent will be separated during the course of the
investigation, either through internal transfer or administrative leave.

e.

During the investigation, the Human Resources Department, together with legal counsel or
other management staff , will interview the complainant, the respondent, and any witnesses to
determine whether the alleged conduct occurred.

f.

Upon conclusion of an investigation, the Human Resources Department (or other person
conducting the investigation) will submit a written report of his or her findings to the company.
If it is determined that a violation of this policy has occurred, the Human Resources
Department will recommend appropriate disciplinary action. The appropriate action will
depend on the following factors:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

the severity, frequency and pervasiveness of the conduct;
prior complaints made by the complainant;
prior complaints made against the respondent; and
the quality of the evidence (e.g., firsthand knowledge, credible corroboration).
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g.

If the investigation is inconclusive or if it is determined that there has been no violation of
policy but potentially problematic conduct may have occurred, the Human Resources
Department may recommend appropriate preventive action.

h.

Senior management will review the investigative report and any statements submitted by the
complainant or respondent, discuss results of the investigation with the Human Resources
Department and other management staff as appropriate, and decide what action, if any, will
be taken.

i.

Once a final decision is made by senior management, the Human Resources Department will
meet with the complainant and the respondent separately and notify them of the findings of
the investigation. If disciplinary action is to be taken, the respondent will be informed of the
nature of the discipline and how it will be executed.

3. Management Responsibility: Division heads and supervisors are charged with the responsibility of
ensuring that employees are provided an environment where they can be productive, satisfied, and safe.
Division heads and supervisors who observe instances of harassment, any form of workplace violence,
have reason to believe, or should have reasonably been expected to know that someone may have been
harassed or threatened, shall promptly inform the next level of management and the Human Resources
Department. Any failure to inform the next level of management and the Human Resources
Department shall make the division head or supervisor subject to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment.
4. Employee Responsibility: Every employee shares responsibility to make the workplace a safe environment.
The purpose is to maintain an awareness of all potential risks and to address such risks before they become
harmful. Any employee who has concerns related to workplace violence, or who becomes aware that an
employee, customer, or visitor to the workplace may have been harassed, is expected to
report such behavior to the supervisor, division head, or Human Resources Department immediately.
Failure to do so will cause the employee to have shared responsibility for a safe workplace and may subject
the employee to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.
5. Investigation of Complaints: The Human Resources Department will promptly investigate all complaints
and shall advise the Executive Director immediately upon receipt of a complaint, except that if the
Executive Director is the subject of the complaint, the Human Resources Department shall advise the
Chairperson of the JWSC. All complaints and investigations are treated confidentially to the extent
possible, and information is disclosed strictly on a need-to-know basis. The identity of the complainant is
usually revealed to the parties involved during the investigation, and the Human Resources Department
will take adequate steps to ensure that the complainant is protected from retaliation during and after the
investigation. All information pertaining to a complaint or investigation under this policy will be
maintained in secure files within the Human Resources Department.
6. Retaliation:
(1) No hardship, loss, benefit or penalty may be imposed on an employee in response to:
a. Filing or responding to a bona fide complaint of discrimination or harassment.
b. Appearing as a witness in the investigation of a complaint.
c. Serving as an investigator of a complaint.
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(2) Lodging a bona fide complaint will in no way be used against the employee or have an adverse
impact on the individual’s employment status. However, filing groundless or malicious complaints
is an abuse of this policy and will be treated as a violation.
(3) Any person who is found to have violated this aspect of the policy will be subject to discipline up to
and including termination of employment.

7. Responsive Action: All employees have a shared responsibility to contribute to a positive and professional
work environment. Any form of harassment or workplace violence constitutes failure to follow the
conduct standards and policies of the JWSC and is subject to disciplinary and corrective action. Responsive
action may include, but is not limited to, training, referral to counseling, and/or other disciplinary action up
to and including termination of employment.
8. Alternative Legal Remedies: Nothing in this policy may prevent the complainant or the respondent from
pursuing formal legal remedies or resolution through local, state or federal agencies or the courts.
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Brunswick-Glynn County
Joint Water and Sewer Commission

Memorandum
To:

Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission

From:

Andrew Burroughs, Executive Director

Date:

Thursday, October 15, 2020

Re:

APPROVAL – Safety Policy Edits

Background
The JWSC Human Resources Standards of Practice Section 4.12 covers safety protocols for all JWSC staff members.
At the Human Resources Committee meeting on September 17, 2020, this policy was discussed with the Committee
and staff recommended referencing the JWSC Employee Safety Manual in this policy to allow for enforcement of the
Safety Manual.
Staff Report
Section 4.12 was edited to include language referencing the JWSC Employee Safety Manual. A redlined version of
the edits is attached. These edits have been reviewed by JWSC legal counsel and Teamwork Services. This item was
presented to the Human Resources Committee on October 15, 2020.
Recommended Action
Staff recommends approving the edits to Section 4.12 of the JWSC Human Resources Standards of Practice as shown
in the attached.
Recommended Motion
“I move that the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission approve the edits to Section 4.12 of
the Human Resources Standards of Practice as presented.”
Enclosures
Draft Section 4.12

Section 4.12

SAFETY
STANDARD
The safety of all JWSC employees is of paramount interest and importance to each division. The JWSC is
dedicated to the effective control of accidents through training, education, proper tools, equipment, and other
safety measures. Safety is a shared responsibility between all employees.
PRACTICE GUIDELINES
1. Responsibility:
A. The Director shall:
(1) Establish, implement, oversee and support a strong and effective safety and loss control program.
(2) Assure that division heads and supervisors are trained in safety and loss control program(s), that
they implement and support the safety and loss control programs within their divisions, and that
they hold periodic safety meetings and training programs with their employees.
(3) Periodically review the effectiveness of the safety and loss control programs with the Human
Resources Department representative and make changes to the program as necessary.
(4) Delegate overall responsibility for the administrative functions of the safety and loss control
programs to the Human Resources Department, as applicable.
(5) Be responsible to the Commissioners of the JWSC for the effectiveness of safety and loss control
programs.
B. The Human Resources Department shall:
(1) Establish, implement, and monitor a safety and loss control program as directed by the Director.
(2) Make recommendations to management regarding safety policies and activities.
(3) Provide practice guidelines that protect the safety and well‐being of employees and minimizes
lost resources.
(4) Identify risk exposure.
(5) Recommend corrective action to limit injury, damage, loss, and liability.
(6) Review and investigate accidents, damages, and special safety issues to determine ways to
prevent recurrence.
(7) Develop and monitor safety incentive programs, as directed by the Director.
(8) Provide special assistance and investigation assistance as appropriate for all types of accidents
with regard to employee injuries, vehicle and equipment damage, and general liability.
(9) Maintain an effective record‐keeping system such that data can be effectively retrieved and used
to monitor trends and activities.
(10) Conduct periodic safety inspections to identify loss‐producing conditions and make
recommendations for corrective action to the Director.
(11) When appropriate, assist division heads and supervisors in formulating and implementing safe
work standards.
(12) Provide assistance to division heads to facilitate safety training within the division.
C. Division Heads shall:
(1) Maintain a safe and healthy environment for all employees and customers.
(2) Give supervisors and managers full responsibility and authority to control accidents in his or her
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(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)

work area.
Identify potential risk exposure.
Recommend corrective action to minimize injury, damage, loss, and liability.
Develop, implement, and enforce safety rules, procedures, and practices for the division that
mirror and support the JWSC‐wide safety and loss control program(s).
Fully train and hold each supervisor and employee accountable for individual responsibility.
Provide leadership and set a positive example supporting safety.
Promptly report all injuries to the Director such that medical treatment may be authorized
properly and timely.
Assure that prompt corrective action is taken when safety hazards are identified.
Ensure that all employees receive prompt medical attention upon injury.
Organize regular division safety meetings, at least monthly, for the purpose of preventing injuries
and controlling loss. The content of the meetings shall be to discuss conditions, situations,
events, accidents, incidents, near misses, damage to equipment, injury to persons, work delays,
and any other conditions that have occurred or may occur. The meetings may also include safety‐
specific training. A record of the date, the names of attendees, and the content of the meeting
shall be preserved in the division, and a copy forwarded to the Director.

D. Supervisors shall:
(1) Maintain a safe and healthy environment for all employees and customers.
(2) Evaluate the work environment and jobs to identify potential risk exposure.
(3) Recommend corrective action to minimize injury, damage, loss, and liability.
(4) Implement, and enforce safety rules, procedures, and practices.
(5) Assist in selecting qualified employees for jobs that match their skills and ability.
(6) Fully train and hold each employee accountable for individual responsibility. Evaluate employee’s
safety activities as a part of annual performance evaluations.
(7) Provide leadership and set a positive example supporting safety.
(8) Ensure that employees promptly report (within 24 hours) all injuries to the Director such that
medical treatment may be authorized properly and timely. Complete a First Report of Injury.
(9) Take or recommend prompt corrective action when safety hazards are reported.
(10) Ensure that all employees receive prompt medical attention upon serious injury.
(11) Support division safety meetings and training programs.
(12) Identify training needs and assure that employees receive training when needed.
(13) Inspect work areas and equipment daily to prevent accidents and injury. Identify unsafe
conditions and correct or recommend action for correction. Maintain written copies of safety
inspection results and recommendations.
(14) Comply with all JWSC and division safety procedures, polices, and rules.
(15) Wear protective clothing and equipment as prescribed for the job.
(16) Report all accidents and injuries immediately to supervisors.
(17) Perform safety inspections on vehicles and equipment daily. Report any unsafe conditions to the
supervisor.
(18) Be mindful of potentially unsafe conditions or unsafe acts. Report such acts and conditions to
supervisors immediately in the interest of safety and efficiency, so that corrective action may be
taken in time to prevent injury. Assist supervisors in inspecting work areas to identify risks.
2. Safety Rules and Regulations: Employees are expected to follow prescribed safety rules. In addition, each
division may implement, with the approval of the Director and consistent with these Standards of Practice,
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regulations which are appropriate to each division’s operations. These safety rules represent the minimum
required behavior and are not all‐inclusive. These guidelines for safe operations are not absolute, inflexible
rules, but must be tempered with common sense on the part of our employees. In the absence of a
reasonable basis for departures from these guidelines, failure to follow these rules will result in disciplinary
action up to and including termination.
A. JWSC employees must follow safety protocols as outlined in the JWSC Employee Safety Manual. The
JWSC Employee Safety Manual will be maintained outside of these Human Resources Standards of
Practice. As needed, but at least once annually, the JWSC Safety Council should review safety protocols
outlined in the JWSC Employee Safety Manual to determine if updates are necessary.
B. Employees must report all accidents immediately to their supervisors.
C. Employees may not enter divisions other than where they are scheduled to work, except on JWSC
business, and when their presence would not distract, endanger or otherwise create or contribute to
an unsafe work environment.
D. Employees must lift properly, get as close behind the load as possible, keep the back straight, and lift
with the legs. Employees must maintain good posture while lifting. Do not twist while lifting and do
not lift excessive loads.
E. Headphones are not permitted on the job except where authorized. Use of personal radios is
governed by division operating procedures.
F. All employees are responsible for exercising due care in the course of their work to prevent injuries to
themselves, to their fellow workers, to the general public, and to prevent damage to JWSC and private
property.
G. All employees are expected to follow these Human Resources Standards of Practice and to perform
and behave according to the Section 7.3, Code of Conduct. When an employee fails to follow the Code
of Conduct, the employee will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment.
H. Before starting a job, each employee must thoroughly understand the work that is to be done, must
understand his or her part in that work, and must know the safety rules that apply.
I.

Climbing or standing on machinery or equipment is strictly prohibited unless it is specifically
authorized.

J.

The use of alcohol or drugs will not be permitted on the job. Employees will not be permitted to work
if any evidence of alcohol or drugs is observed. This shall include any drug prescribed or purchased
over the counter that may interfere with safe work performance.

K. Running, pushing, shoving, fighting, or “horseplay” is strictly prohibited.
L. Personal protective clothing and equipment must be worn while performing certain jobs. Approved
safety eyeglasses, goggles, face shields are required when grinding, polishing, buffing, mowing,
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chipping or trimming. Hard hats are required where overhead exposure (falling objects) may be
present. Protective vests are required for specific jobs. Welders shall be required to wear appropriate
eye protection and other proper clothing (gloves, arm and shoulder protection) as instructed by the
supervisor.
M. Employees who are provided steel‐toed safety shoes are required to wear them.
N. Safety vests shall be worn by any employee working in traffic or in close proximity to the street.
O. Ladders shall be used only when the proper length has been selected for the job. Employees must not
stand on the platform or on the second rung from the top. Employees must not “walk” a ladder while
standing on it. Ladders shall be properly secured during use.
P. Oily rags, waste, and chemicals shall be properly stored. Material Safety Data Sheets will be available
for all hazardous materials in the workplace.
Q. Employees must report any unsafe conditions or practices to the supervisor.
R. Employees are encouraged to make suggestions when they believe such suggestions could improve
the safety or performance of the operation.
S. Reporting an Accident: In all situations, medical needs must be attended to immediately and the
injury/accident reported promptly. If the accident involves damage to a JWSC vehicle or equipment,
the supervisor or other management employee must be notified immediately. (See Section 4.15,
Equipment Use, Care, and Maintenance, for reporting accidents involving equipment; Section 4.16,
Vehicle Use, Care, and Maintenance, for reporting accidents involving vehicles; and Section 5.4,
Workers’ Compensation Insurance, for reporting work‐related injuries.)
T. Enforcement and Corrective or Disciplinary Action: All employees are required to follow safety rules.
Employees should be made aware of safety rules during new employee orientation and in training for
any new job. First line supervisors are required to properly train employees. Employees or supervisors
who fail to properly follow and enforce safety rules will be directed to the JWSC Code of Conduct and
appropriate corrective or disciplinary action will be taken.
U. Unauthorized Persons in the Workplace: While JWSC facilities are public places and generally open to
the public, an employee’s friends and family members are discouraged from visiting the employee in
the workplace. Visitors may be unfamiliar with the hazards of the work environment and should avoid
such areas. Visitors may also tend to distract employees from attention to their work and may present
opportunity for error or injury. In order to limit the JWSC’s liability, visitors should be discouraged
except in guided tours and special events
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Brunswick-Glynn County
Joint Water and Sewer Commission

Memorandum
To:

BGJWSC Board of Commissioners

From:

Andrew Burroughs Executive Director

Date:

Thursday, October 15, 2020

Re:

Approval – Leak Adjustment / Westminster Club Apartments

Background:
Section 2-16-63 of the Glynn County Ordinances allows for leak adjustments for water and sewer billing. The
customer is responsible for half of the increase above the customer’s average monthly consumption, and the customer
is required to provide proof that the leak is fixed. The calculation for a leak adjustment is found in Section 2-16-63(g).
JWSC commercial customer Westminster Club Apartments requested a leak adjustment due to a 2-inch broken water
main line under a tree near the back west side of “H” Building. Westminster Club Apartments discovered they had a
leak when they received a very high water bill. Westminster Club Apartments hired a plumber who installed new ball
valve shut off on each building as to isolate the buildings from the main. With all water shut off, the meter was still
moving at a high rate. The plumber discovered water coming out of the ground under a tree near “H” Building.
Westminster Club Apartments had the tree and stump removed, as well as the sidewalk in order for the excavation and
repair to be completed. This sizeable leak caused an excessive usage of 2,236,547 gallons of water at a cost of
$6,141.64. Westminster Club Apartments paid these two (2) very high water bills complete as received, resulting in
late fees not being applicable for this leak adjustment. Westminster Club Apartments did have a plumber correct the
leak and qualifies for a leak adjustment pursuant to the policy. Section 2-16-63(h) of the Glynn County Ordinances
requires any leak adjustment totaling $2,000 or more to be presented to the Commission for final approval.

Staff Report
Staff has reviewed this request for a leak adjustment and found it in accordance with ordinance and policy. The
calculated amount of the leak adjustment is $6,141.64 for Westminster Club Apartments. The leak adjustment forms
and supporting documentation are attached.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends approving the leak adjustment in the amount of $6,141.64 for Westminster Club Apartments. This
item was presented to the Finance Committee on October 14, 2020.

Recommended Motion
“I move that the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission approve the leak adjustment in the
amount of $6,141.64 to the account of Westminster Club Apartments as presented.”

Enclosures
Leak Adjustment Request

Brunswick-Glynn County
Joint Water and Sewer Commission

Memorandum
To:

BGJWSC Board of Commissioners

From:

Andrew Burroughs Executive Director

Date:

Thursday, October 15, 2020

Re:

Approval – Leak Adjustment / McDonald’s, SSI

Background:
Section 2-16-63 of the Glynn County Ordinances allows for leak adjustments for water and sewer billing. The
customer is responsible for half of the increase above the customer’s average monthly consumption, and the customer
is required to provide proof that the leak is fixed. The calculation for a leak adjustment is found in Section 2-16-63(g).
JWSC commercial customer McDonald’s located on St. Simons Island requested a leak adjustment due to a broken
water main line to their sprinkler system. The leak could not be seen due to the water pouring directly into the ditch
located behind the trash corral. The water line was broken when a dead tree stump fell on top of it, and the roots of the
stump were tangled with the water line. McDonald’s discovered they had a leak when they received a higher than
normal water bill. McDonald’s had a plumber turn off the water at the main for the sprinklers on June 14; repaired the
water main line on June 15; removed the tree stump completely and cleared out some additional roots. This sizeable
leak caused an excessive usage of 1,483,874 gallons of water at a cost of $2,532.60. Due to the period of time between
the Adjustment Application was turned in until the adjustment was calculated, there is a late fee reflected in the
amount of $270.12, which should also be adjusted, for a total leak adjustment of $2,802.72. McDonald’s did have a
plumber correct the leak and qualifies for a leak adjustment pursuant to the policy. Section 2-16-63(h) of the Glynn
County Ordinances requires any leak adjustment totaling $2,000 or more to be presented to the Commission for final
approval.

Staff Report
Staff has reviewed this request for a leak adjustment and found it in accordance with ordinance and policy. The
calculated amount of the leak adjustment is $2,802.72 for McDonald’s located on St. Simons Island. The leak
adjustment forms and supporting documentation are attached.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends approving the leak adjustment in the amount of $2,802.72 for McDonald’s located on St. Simons
Island. This item was presented to the Finance Committee on October 14, 2020.

Recommended Motion
“I move that the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission approve the leak adjustment in the
amount of $2,802.72 to the account of McDonald’s located on St. Simons Island as presented.”

Enclosures
Leak Adjustment Request

